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Financial Highlight
B E

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

o Revenue increased by 8.1% to approximately HK$179.3
million

o Revenue from mortgage loan receivables increased by 9.0%
to approximately HK$99.7 million

o Profit attributable to the equity shareholders increased by
0.3% to approximately HK$86.4 million

o Net profit margin decreased by 3.7 percentage points to
48.2%

o Basic earnings per share is HK4.5 cents

o Gross pawn loan receivables increased by 4.3% to
approximately HK$180.5 million

o Gross mortgage loan receivables increased by 2.0% to
approximately HK$769.5 million

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

o Total amount of new pawn loans granted decreased by
15.2% to approximately HK$819.0 million

o Average amount of pawn loans granted decreased by 22.4%
to approximately HK$10,500 per transaction

° Number of new pawn loans (larger than HK$100,000)
granted decreased by 1.4% to 715 cases

o Total amount of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
42.8% to approximately HK$341.2 million

o Average amount of mortgage loans granted decreased by
33.6% to approximately HK$3.9 million

o Number of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
13.9% to 87 cases

o Net interest margin for pawn loans increased by 0.1
percentage points to 37.7%

o Net interest margin for mortgage loans increased by 1.0
percentage points to 11.5%

o As at 29 February 2024, the average loan-to-value ratio of
the mortgage loan portfolio was kept at around 54.1%
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Five-year Financial Summary

hFIHEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-mE —E-=%F —E-CF —T-—F —TTEF
Profitability data (HK$'000) ZRIEHEE (T#Ex)
Revenue from pawn loan MEERER W=
business
~ Interest income from pawn - HEEFZF S
loans WA 9,477 14,411 10,081 8,171 10,213
— Interest income from pawn - EAF(EF AR
loan receivables at fair value ZEWHRE SR
through profit or loss FBUA 63,367 56,693 50,131 48,002 54,264
- Gain on disposal of - HELKEEEY
repossessed assets W as 6,715 3,205 9,093 8,024 7,266
Total revenue from pawn loan — HEEHRERK 2 B
business 79,559 74,309 69,305 64,197 71,743
Revenue from mortgage loan  IRIBEMERER 2tz
business
— Interest income from - RIBEIRER
mortgage loans ZFBUA 99,748 91,532 82,672 118,571 152,216
Total revenue iz 179,307 165,841 151,977 182,768 223,959
Operating profit "iEm 109,412 112,500 98,082 133,005 166,649
Profit attributable to equity T AR R FE G 5 T
shareholders 86,447 86,107 71,671 93,144 107,383
Earnings per share — basic SREBF - X ()
(HK cents) 4.5 4.5 3.7 4.8 5.5
Profitability ratios (%) BRI E(%)
Operating profit margin AR 61.0 67.8 64.5 72.8 74.4
Net profit margin RS 48.2 51.9 47.2 51.0 47.9
Effective tax rate (Note 1) BERBIE (HEE1) 16.3 16.2 16.3 16.9 16.3
Return on total assets (Note 2) ZBE&ZEEIR (F:F2) 7.3 7.5 6.2 7.6 7.5
Return on shareholders’ equity AR EREzS B3R (HizE3)
(Note 3) 8.0 8.4 7.3 9.8 12.0
Net interest margin (Note 4)  EB:= (HizH4) 16.4 15.6 15.0 13.7 13.1
— pawn loans - BEER 37.7 37.6 38.7 40.2 41.0
- mortgage loans - RIBERER 11.5 10.5 9.9 10.0 95
Note 1 Effective income tax rate is equal to the current tax divided by  FfiF1 BEAESMEENZEE 2 ENEITER K B AT
the profit before taxation for the respective year i
Note 2 Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year  [ffsF2 EBEARELORIIZERNENGUNSEFENEEE
by the total assets as at the respective year Bt E
Note 3 Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by  [fi5¥3 #EREIMIIEFERNHMNGEUASFE 2 R @5
the total equity as at the respective year &
Note 4 Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income  [MizF4 FRZFEEHREANEBEHBEERLIRBEME

in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the
respective finance costs, divided by the average of month-end
gross loan receivables balances of the corresponding loans during
the year

ERZMBMABEBBERAS  RAFNBEE
Rz AR WS SRR TR

T omEFR 5



Five-year Financial Summary

hFMBHE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-NE —Eo=E —E-CF —T=-F i S 322
Operating ratios (as a REh R (fhkaE
percentage of revenue) (%) BZtt) (%)
Staff costs BTHA 17.7 17.8 19.4 15.9 13.6
Rental expenses plus MRSk HE
depreciation of right-of-use BENE
assets 6.8 7.7 8.7 7.2 5.9
Advertising and promotions BEREE 1.4 1.4 1.8 1.7 1.8

Assets and liabilities data EEREERE

(HK$'000) (F#&x)
Non-current assets B AE 57,076 88,253 62,407 63,993 143,074
Current assets BB E 1,131,630 1,065,317 1,093,407 1,155,499 1,285,273
Current liabilities mEaE 101,811 89,815 122,515 178,866 356,662
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 7,213 33,710 50,388 91,773 176,366
Capital and reserves BARR 1,079,682 1,030,045 982,911 948,853 895,319
Gross loan receivables - principal JEIRE B - A& 949,978 927,595 890,322 934,097 1,279,143
— Gross pawn loan receivables - JEWEE S 445 180,479 173,104 164,026 132,901 141,815
- Gross mortgage loan - BRIRIBERER
receivables B 769,499 754,491 726,296 801,196 1,137,328

Assets and working capital EBEREEESEHE

data
Current ratios (Note 5) BN (M3ES) 11.1 11.9 8.9 6.5 3.6
Gearing ratios (%) (Note 6) fEE (%) (Fi3E6) 7.7 9.3 15.0 26.2 55.2
Net assets value per share (HK$) BREEFE (BT)

(Note 7) (PH3E7) 0.560 0.534 0.510 0.491 0.462

Note 5 Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current M55 REBHRINIRSERZRBEER ARSI B E:T
liabilities as at the respective year end &

Note 6 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation {316 1% SRS FERZBEE (fﬁﬁ% RGBT
of bank loans and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases, EREEAE EMER EB NGl - ¢/ 954

FITEISES 2 BF) R AR £@§Eu+:—:

im]

FU%

other loans, loans from immediate holding company and debt
securities issued) by total equity as at the respective year end

Note 7 Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing net assets by W57 SREEFENRSERNEEFHERUBRMNE
the total number of shares as at the respective year end EtE
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Five-year Financial Summary
A FUBHE
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Five-year Financial Summary
A FUBHE

Return on shareholders’ equity Net interest margin - pawn loans
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “"Board”) of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “our
Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “"Group” or “our Group”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 29 February 2024 ("FY2024").

During the reporting year, Hong Kong and the global economy
have gradually rebounded from the trough. However, the pace
of economic recovery is hindered by various factors, including
tightening of monetary policy and geopolitical tensions.
Additionally, the second-hand luxury market remained active,
leading to the great performance of pawn business and
contributed to profit growth for the year.

With the resumption of business activities after Covid-19, the
Hong Kong Government has put in effort into organising different
world-class mega events to attract visitors and to boost market
activities. The Group is pleased to see a more durable economic
revival that drives enterprises’ growth, which in turn will increase
the overall loan demand in the future.

To capture the post-pandemic opportunities, we got a head start and
launched a premier service center at East Tsim Sha Tsui MTR Station
of Tuen Ma Line. This is a significant milestone as it is the Group's
first location in an MTR station. The service center complemented
with our newly developed pawn loan mobile application. Along with
the new venture, we are dedicated to providing customers with a
streamlined one-stop loan solutions, signifying a ground breaking
shift in the conventional pawnbroking landscape.

Moreover, we established a limited partnership fund with PACM
Group (Holdings) Limited (“PACM Group”) and subscribed for the
interests to expand our loan portfolio overseas in March 2024.
We target to create stable returns in the volatile market through
achieving a resilient and diversified portfolio. We believe that this
strategic offshore expansion will contribute to the next phase of the
Group's growth and enhance shareholder value in the long term.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our management team and employees for their
continuing commitment and effort towards the growth of the
Group. | also wish to express sincere thanks to the support of
our customers and shareholders, as well as the hard work and
dedication of the team during the challenging time, which helps
us maintain a sustainable performance. As the economy gradually
recovers, we will continue to seize opportunities by innovations,
and deliver sustainable growth for our shareholders.

Chan Kai Ho, Edward
Chairman and Executive Director

27 May 2024

Chairman Statement
TEHME

ANERRBEREEEZERBERQAF ([F2A7])
REWBAR CERARBGE [AE@])EES
(EEg ] ) MAREAKEHE_FT _NF_HA
“HAREFE ([ Z2-NFHRFE]) 2FHh-

RBEFE  BERZREESEAEGHET - A
e E¥BRRRE HEBARTEREERBRAERME
BT RBEERENSK WIN —FEERMIGREL
B BERERBRALE  SAFEARIIERAE
HER

BEZ2019EMm T imBE A EEBNIRE - TEBUT
HAORBREBERAARESE  UESEFLHES)
MGES AEELEREEEHEMFA - HEHEE
R I IR KR ERF L

BTEERIBBROMKE  HFIRGLE ELER
KREBHUEFARY T — RS ARG L - T AEE
BIGERBEY, AEEEMNBERBEE - ZRBD
DB AFIRTF R E BRURE ERE A -
BERLEHCE RARH AT FRHBEHN —wmN

EFBATR HBEZERREERBHRBEIEE
Bo
N RZFEZWE= H - BHPIEFPACM Group

(Holdings) Limited ([PACM Group ] )R BREE
EeUREESER  UARRMEIINERES -
BMEEBABEERZ IR EMES ERBHO™T
5 BERRTE 7 [ 3R o FAPIAEAS I BURS 1R SME OR
BPRESAEENT —HERER  RERAKREE
@o

ANERREFGROBHEEBEGLEBERAE
BERIBFHITA - BHTE - IR E P MK
RESHs - A K BB 7E 8 im Dk B O By B AR H B9 2 &)
BAAE IR BBV R PIE T RIS ERIR - BEEL
HEELER  RABEERBEFICERSE SRR
wRAIBEER -

FERPITEF
BRI ER

“E-NNFERA-++H

—EoEgEsR  §



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET W& DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or "our Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company collectively referred to as the “Group” or “our Group”)
is a financing service provider in Hong Kong operating under
the brand name of “Oi Wah", principally engaged in providing
secured financing, including mortgage loans and pawn loans.

MORTGAGE LOAN BUSINESS

For the year ended 29 February 2024 ("FY2024"), the economy
has started to recover gradually, resulting in a moderate demand
for loans. The revenue from the mortgage loan business increased
from approximately HK$91.5 million for the year ended 28
February 2023 (“FY2023") to HK$99.7 million, representing an
increase of 9.0% or HK$8.2 million. Revenue generated from the
mortgage loan business accounted for approximately 55.6% of the
Group's total revenue during the year. The gross mortgage loan
receivables was approximately HK$769.5 million as at 29 February
2024. During the year, net interest margin of the mortgage loan
business increased to 11.5% (FY2023: 10.5%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In FY2024, the Group has continued to maintain a prudent
approach when granting loans, underpinned by a focus on
building a resilient loan portfolio amid the uncertain environment
brought about by the pandemic. We are of the view that
maintaining a cautious underwriting stance and healthy loan
portfolio will position the Group well for the economic recovery
and eventual normalization ahead. During the year, the average
loan-to-value ratio for first mortgage was approximately 54.1%,
while average overall loan-to-value ratio for subordinary mortgage
was approximately 52.7%, of which, average loan-to-value
ratio of subordinary mortgage that the Group participate in was
approximately 16.3%.

PAWN LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2024, the revenue from the pawn loan business
increased from HK$74.3 million to HK$79.6 million, representing
an increase of 7.1% or HK$5.3 million. The pawn loan receivables
amount increased by 4.3% or HK$7.4 million from approximately
HK$173.1 million as at 28 February 2023 to HK$180.5 million as
at 29 February 2024. The increase was mainly attributed to the
increase in gold price and an active second-hand luxury market,
especially for watches.

During the year, the Group continued to channel resources
to advertising and promotion to enhance the Group's brand
exposure. Together with the effect of opening a new premium
service center in East Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station in October 2023,
these effort has generated demand for one-to-one pawn loan
appointment services for pawn loans.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

With the negative impacts, including the global monetary
policy tightening cycle and the geopolitical tensions, global
economic growth has slowed down. Although the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region has proposed
measures to adjust the demand of local residential properties,
there has been limited effect on stimulating transactions in the
local residential property market; the residential property prices
in Hong Kong have continuously declined by 6.8% in 2023. We
will continue to monitor property price trends and capture any
potential opportunities to maximize the returns for investors and
shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET W& DM

The instability in U.S. and European banking and geopolitics has
led to the rise in the risk aversion sentiments among investors.
Gold price has been relatively volatile at high levels, and has hit
a record high during the year. In addition, the market expects an
interest-reducing cycle from the Federal Reserve System of the
United States (“the Feds”) soon. We believe that gold prices are
likely to remain strong. As long as there is no significant drop
in near term, we expect that there will be limited effect on our
business.

During the year, the market for pre-owned timepieces has been
continuously buoyant and served as a catalyst for customers to
utilize our pawn loans as a funding channel, thereby contributing
to the growth of our pawn loan business. Moving forward,
with our prestigious customer experience, we are dedicated to
maintaining our leading position as the pawn loan provider of
choice for a comprehensive range of flexible financing options.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our Group's revenue increased from approximately HK$165.8
million for FY2023 to approximately HK$179.3 million for FY2024,
representing an increase of approximately HK$13.5 million
or 8.1%. The increase was attributable to the increase in our
interest income from mortgage business by approximately HK$8.2
million or 9.0% from approximately HK$91.5 million in FY2023
to approximately HK$99.7 million in FY2024 and the increase in
our revenue from pawn loan business by approximately HK$5.3
million or 7.1% from approximately HK$74.3 million in FY2023 to
approximately HK$79.6 million in FY2024.

Mortgage loan business

The increase in our interest income from mortgage business
was mainly due to the average month end balance for the
gross mortgage loans receivables for the year increased from
approximately HK$791.2 million in FY2023 to approximately
HK$821.9 million in FY2024 with total new mortgage loans
granted of approximately HK$341.2 million during FY2024 (FY2023:
approximately HK$596.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pawn loan business

The increase in our pawn loan business was due to the increase
in our interest income earned on our pawn loan receivables
by approximately HK$1.8 million or 2.5% from approximately
HK$71.1 million in FY2023 to approximately HK$72.9 million in
FY2024, together with the increase in revenue from disposal of
repossessed assets by approximately HK$3.5 million.

The increase in our interest income earned on our pawn loan
receivables was mainly attributable to the average month end
balance for the gross pawn loans receivables for the year increased
from approximately HK$186.2 million in FY2023 to approximately
HK$190.6 million in FY2024.

Revenue from disposal of repossessed assets represents the gain/
(loss) of the Group as we sold the repossessed assets in the event
of default in repayment of our pawn loans. The increase in our
gain on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2024 was mainly due
to (i) the sudden significant drop of the price of brand watches
in July and August 2022 while no such event happened during
FY2024, and (i) the increase in the gold price per ounce from
around US$1,800 in March 2023 to around US$2,050 in January
2024. Since every pawn loan has a loan term of four lunar
months, the revenue increased with the appreciation of gold price
and the stabilization in the price of brand watches during FY2024
and thus the increase in gain on disposal of repossessed assets in
FY2024 was recorded.

Other income, gains or losses

Other income increased from approximately HK$3.7 million in
FY2023 to approximately HK$4.7 million in FY2024, representing
an increase of approximately HK$1.0 million or 27.0%, which was
mainly due to (i) the increase in rental income of approximately
HK$1.2 million and (ii) the increase in bank interest income by
approximately HK$1.3 million; netting off with the decrease in the
receipt of a one-off subsidy from the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund
for relieving financial burden of the businesses of approximately
HK$0.9 million in FY2023 while no such income was received in
FY2024 and the decrease in COVID-19-related rent concession by
approximately HK$0.8 million in FY2023 while no such income
was received in FY2024.
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Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by approximately HK$2.4 million
or 4.2% from approximately HK$57.1 million in FY2023 to
approximately HK$59.5 million in FY2024.

During FY2024, staff costs increased by approximately HK$2.1
million or 7.1% from approximately HK$29.6 million in FY2023 to
approximately HK$31.7 million in FY2024. The increase was mainly
contributed by (i) the increase in the salaries and other benefits
to staff of approximately HK$1.3 million, and (ii) the increase in
directors’ remuneration of approximately HK$0.9 million.

According to HKFRS 16, all operating lease with contract terms
of more than 1 year should be treated as finance lease. Thus, the
contractual liabilities for the rental agreements are discounted
and recognised as finance lease assets. Rental expenses and
depreciation for right-to-use assets slightly decreased by
approximately HK$0.6 million or 4.7% from approximately
HK$12.7 million in FY2023 to approximately HK$12.1 million in
FY2024. The decrease was mainly due to the closure of one of
our pawnshops in Tai Po in April 2023, netting off with opening a
new premium service center in East Tsim Sha Tsui MTR Station in
October 2023.

Apart from staff costs, rental expenses and depreciation for
right-to-use assets as mention above, other operating expenses
increased by approximately HK$0.9 million or 6.1% from
approximately HK$14.8 million in FY2023 to approximately
HK$15.7 million in FY2024. This was mainly due to the increase in
legal and professional fees by approximately HK$0.8 million.

Finance costs

During the year, the finance costs decreased by approximately
HK$3.7 million or 37.8% from approximately HK$9.8 million in
FY2023 to approximately HK$6.1 million in FY2024. It was mainly
due to the decrease in debt securities issued in FY2024.

Impairment losses recognised on loan receivables

The impairment losses recognised on loan receivables of
approximately HK$15.1 million in FY2024 were measured based
on the requirement under HKFRS 9.
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The impairment losses recognised on pawn loan receivables
by approximately HK$4.8 million in FY2024 represented an
impairment made on four pawn loan agreements where the
management considered there was an increased likelihood of
the value of the collaterals of these four loans not being able to
fully cover the underlying outstanding loan amount and interest.
Among these four pawn loans, one of them had been fully
written-off during FY2024.

The impairment losses recognised on mortgage receivables
by approximately HK$10.3 million in FY2024 represented
the impairment made on several first mortgage loans and a
subordinated mortgage loan. All these mortgage loans are
defaulted loans and the management had taken legal actions on
the respective borrowers.

For the subordinated mortgage loan case, the borrower had been
bankrupt during FY2024 and the management considered there
was an increased likelihood of the value of the collaterals of the
subordinated mortgage loan not being able to fully cover the
underlying outstanding loan amount and interest. The impairment
losses recognised on this subordinated mortgage loan was
approximately HK$2.4 million.

In respect of the first mortgage loans mentioned, although the
sale proceeds from the secured properties under defaulted first
mortgage loans from previous financial years were higher than
their respective fall sales price* during FY2024 such that the
principals with interests of such loans had been fully recovered
from the sales proceeds, for FY2024's impairment assessment, the
management has decided to take a more prudent approach where
the assessment was made by comparing the fall sales price* (instead
of the fair value) of the secured properties under defaulted first
mortgage loans with the principal plus interest on those defaulted
mortgage loans. Thus, an impairment of approximately HK$7.9
million was recognised during FY2024.

* Fall sales price means the open bid price for the property(ies) to be sold
under auction.

No impairment losses on loan receivables was recorded in FY2023.
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Income tax expenses

Our Group's effective tax rate remained relatively stable at
approximately 16.2% in FY2023 as compared to approximately
16.3% in FY2024. No material fluctuation was noted.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our Group's profit for FY2024 increased to approximately
HK$86.4 million from approximately HK$86.1 million in FY2023,
representing an increase of approximately HK$0.3 million or 0.3%.
The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in revenue
by approximately HK$13.5 million, and (ii) the decrease in finance
costs amounted to approximately HK$3.7 million, netting off with
the increase in other operating expenses and impairment losses
or loss receivables amounted to approximately HK$2.4 million and
approximately HK$15.1 million respectively.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy and
maintained a healthy financial position during FY2024. During
FY2024, the Group’s operational and capital requirements were
financed principally through retained earnings, bank loans and
overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding company, other
loans and debt securities issued. All borrowings of the Group are
denominated at HKD.

As at 29 February 2024, all outstanding interest-bearing bank
loans and overdrafts were repayable in one year and bore interest
at variable rates. The bank loans and overdrafts were secured by (i)
a sub-mortgage charge on certain loan receivables of a subsidiary
of the Company; (ii) the aggregate principal amount of the
mortgage loan receivables of a subsidiary; and/or (iii) a corporate
guarantee executed by the Company. During FY2024, the Group
had fulfilled all the financial covenants, if any, under the Group’s
banking facilities.

As at 29 February 2024, the loans from immediately holding
company were repayable in one year and bore interest at 5%
per annum. The loans were secured by a corporate guarantee
executed by the Company.

As at 29 February 2024, the debt securities issued bore interest at
6% to 7% and were repayable in one year.

16 BERLEEERERAR

8B

AEBEZEBRRERFASIE RS =F0K
FENBI162% M _E_NFHBRFELAE16.3% °
B SFIS B AR B

FRNBFAREEMBAEEE
AEBR-_Z-_NFHRFEZENH_T_=F
B B4 JE 4986,100,000/8 7T 38 1147300,00074 JT 8k
0.3%ZE#986,400,000/8 7T ° ;Z3%1R Jh £ ZEH ()
W5 18 AN #913,500,0008 7T » K (i) @& A ANE 2 49
3,700,000 70 KB EtE BRI RERER 2
SEEETE D BIE AN#92,400,00058 7T &2 £4915,100,000
BT

RBESRMBER

R-ZF_MEMBEFE - I%ﬁé%ﬂ%’lﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ
BER - W@ BN - R =T WFH K
FE- ZS%@E’J%E&QZK%IIK@L{%W%WJ
fEﬁEﬂ&iﬁE‘Z ERERAREN  HMERRE
RTEGESBENES - Zﬁ’ilﬁﬁﬁﬁ%i’]%’émﬁr
(& o

m:;:m¢—a—+na B REE BRITE

REBXAR—FAER  WRFBF KGR < RIT
Am&ﬁ§M0$ m— B A RE T R E R
IRBIZIBE : (i) B R R EIRIBERE RN A
S R RGINARAELA A BEREER - 5
“EOMEMBEERE  AREEBETASERTRE
BT BN HReE () -

“HE—A-TNR - KREERERRRZE
%J‘Eé—ima5&&&&%‘@5%%% BEENH
PNGIES SVAOPNCIE L S SR

%i#fi’

RZZ-WF-_A-+hA BHTEHEFKE%
ET7%MNEEE - BAR—FAREE-



Management Discussion and Analysis

Based on the Group's current and anticipated levels of operation,
the Group’s future operations and capital requirements will be
mainly financed through bank loans and overdrafts, loans from
the immediate holding company, other loans, retained earnings
and share capital. There were no significant commitments for
capital expenditure as at 29 February 2024.

As at 29 February 2024, cash and cash equivalents (net of
bank overdraft) amounted to approximately HK$170.6 million,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$8.2 million as
compared to the position as at 28 February 2023. The increase
was attributable to the following items:
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For the year For the year

ended 29 ended 28

February 2024 February 2023

Bz H=

“B-WF —EC=F

—A=t+hH —R=Z+N\H

IHEE EEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FAT

Net cash generated from operating activities REEGMFHR SR 72,079 73,096

Payment for acquisition of assets W& & 2 508 - (9,495)

Payments for the purchase of plant and BEmRE & RE 28

equipment (1,785) (317)

Repayments of debt securities BEESFZER (12,000) (50,000)

Net repayments of bank loans IRITERZEFFE - (2,000)

Payments for repurchase of shares BRI AR (D < 5KIB - (423)

Dividend paid BT S (36,810) (38,550)

Finance costs paid BTRVE AR (5,406) (9,074)

Government subsidy received 2T R A - 888

Other net outflow HAth 7t 558 (7,865) (8,368)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash He KRS EYIE M (L)

equivalents FER 8,213 (44,243)

Pledge of assets

As at 29 February 2024, the Group had pledged its mortgage loan
receivables with net book value of approximately HK$335.7 million
(28 February 2023: approximately HK$312.3 million) for the
purpose of obtaining facilities from banks and other independent
third parties.
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Contingent liabilities

There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at %

29 February 2024.

Key financial ratios B s
As at As at
29 February 28 February
2024 2023
R-F-WEF R-F-=F
—A=thB8 —A=+N\HR
Current ratio™ BN RO 11.1x 11.9x
Gearing ratio®? BELLER® 7.7% 9.3%
For the For the
year ended year ended
29 February 28 February
2024 2023
BZE HE
o 11 -3 —ZEZ=F
—RA=tHhH —R=Z+N\H
LEE IEFE
Return on total assets® BEBBERR 7.3% 7.5%
Return on equity® REzE B FR@ 8.0% 8.4%
Net profit margin® HEF RO 48.2% 51.9%
Net interest margin® AEEO 16.4% 15.6%
— pawn loan services — BEERRS 37.7% 37.6%
— mortgage loan services — RBEIRE KRS 11.5% 10.5%

Notes: Bt -

(1

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the respective year end.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation
of bank loans and overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding
company, other loans and debt securities issued) by total equity as

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by

Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the

(2)
at the respective year end.
(3)
the total assets as at the respective year end.
4)
total equity as at the respective year end.
(5)

18

Net profit margin is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the
turnover for the respective year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(6)  Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income in
respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the respective
finance costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan
receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year.

Current ratio

Our Group's current ratio slightly decreased from approximately
11.9 times as at 28 February 2023 to approximately 11.1 times as
at 29 February 2024. No material fluctuation was noted.

Gearing ratio

Our Group's gearing ratio decreased from approximately 9.3%
as at 28 February 2023 to approximately 7.7% as at 29 February
2024, which was mainly triggered by the decrease in debt
securities issued which were amounted to approximately HK$12.0
million.

Return on total assets,
margin

return on equity, and net profit

Our return on total assets, return on equity, and net profit
margin decreased from approximately 7.5%, 8.4% and 51.9% in
FY2023 to 7.3%, 8.0% and 48.2% in FY2024 respectively, which
was mainly due to the impairment losses recognised on loan
receivables by approximately HK$15.1 million in FY2024.

Net interest margin

There was an increase in our net interest margin from
approximately 15.6% in FY2023 to approximately 16.4% in
FY2024. The reason for such an increase was mainly due to the
decrease in finance costs by approximately HK$3.7 million during
FY2024.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's operations, financial conditions, profits and growth
prospects are affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as
outlined below. These factors are not exhaustive and there may
be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
become material in the future.

Financial risk

Financial risk factors include credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk and fair value risk. As a money lender in Hong Kong providing
pawn loan and mortgage loan financings to corporations or
private individuals which are secured with collaterals, credit risk is
regarded as the prime risk of the Group.

Mortgage business

For mortgage business, the Group generates revenue from
interest received from the provision of loans to corporate and
private individual customers, who are mainly small and medium
enterprises with needs in their business turnover. The Group’s
principal loan products for mortgage business are (i) first mortgage
loans, which are secured by the first mortgage on the borrowers’
real estates; and (ii) subordinated mortgage loans, which are
secured by mortgages subordinated to the first mortgages charged
on the borrowers' pledged properties. The Group mainly offers
mortgage loan financings which are secured against real estate
assets located in Hong Kong which include residential, commercial
and industrial real estate assets. Usually, the term of our mortgage
loans are twelve months.

The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis. Approval for loan
applications, together with the loan amount and corresponding
interest rate, are determined based on a number of factors
including, amongst others, the credit history and profile of the
applicant, the property type, profile and valuation of the proposed
property to be mortgaged and the prevailing market conditions.
In the majority of the cases, the Group grants loan with a loan-to
value ratio of no more than 70% at the date of grant. As at 29
February 2024, the overall weighted average loan-to-value ratio of
the Group's loan portfolio is managed at around 54.1%.
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The Group also establishes standard procedures and the mortgage
department is responsible for ongoing monitoring of loan
recoverability, which includes the repayment status and a quarterly
review on the market value of the underlying collateral, and loan
collection. During FY2024, approximately HK$10.3 million of
the impairment losses recognised on mortgage receivables was
made. It was mainly represented the impairment made on several
first mortgage loans and a subordinated mortgage loan. All
these mortgage loans are defaulted loans and the management
had taken legal actions on the respective borrowers. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Financial Review” under
Management Discussion and Analysis.

Pawn loan business

For pawn loan business, the Group generates revenue from (i)
interest received from the provision of loans to corporate and
private individual customers, and (ii) if the loan is defaulted, the
potential gain/loss on the disposal of the respective collaterals
from the defaulted loan. The major category of collaterals we
received in pawn loan business are gold and jewelries, diamond,
brand watches and consumer electronic products.

The Group establishes internal guidelines for the pawnshop staff
for granting each pawn loan. Customer identification, evaluation
of ownership of the collaterals and the valuation of the collaterals
are the major factors we consider before we grant our pawn loan.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value ratio ranging
from 50% to 85%, depending on the type of collateral and the
valuation made at the point of granting the loan. In addition,
approval is required to be obtained from management if the loan
amount is greater than HK$60,000 for each single transaction.

The Group has a wide and diversify customer base. For mortgage
loan business, loan size of each loan ranges from approximately
HK$0.2 million to approximately HK$50.0 million during FY2024.
For pawn loan business, each pawn loan size ranges from
approximately HK$50 to approximately HK$7,700,000 during
FY2024. As at 29 February 2024, our loan portfolio was diversified
and approximately 4.8% (As at 28 February 2023: 5.5%) and
19.0% (As at 28 February 2023: 18.9%) of the total gross loan
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer (in respect
of the principle of the loan) and the five largest customers (in
respect of the principle of the loan) respectively.

Further information on the internal control and risk management
measures in relation to credit risk and other aforesaid financial
risk factors of the Group are elaborated in Note 26 "Financial
risk management and fair value” to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, human and system errors
or from external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with every function at departmental levels. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework.
Management will identify and assess key operational exposures
regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.

Market risk

Performance of the Group's business will be affected by various
market factors in Hong Kong, including but not limited to
economic conditions, valuation of the luxury goods and the overall
property market conditions in Hong Kong. A downturn in (i) the
economy, (ii) value of luxury goods, and/or (iii) property market in
Hong Kong may result not only in a decline in the number of real
estate and luxury goods transactions, which may limit the growth
of the Group’s pawn and mortgage loan portfolio, but also a
decline in the value of the underlying coallaterals in respect of the
Group's pawn and mortgage loans, which may increase the risk
of impairment of the Group’s mortgage loan portfolio or result in
loss on disposal if the pawn loan default.

For mortgage business, the Group has implemented policies to
carry out continuous monitoring of the property market and the
collateral value of the underlying mortgage loan portfolio so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

For pawn loan business, except for the internal guidelines for
granting the loan, monthly review and discussion between
management and pawnshop staff are made in order to ensure
everyone are kept updated on the trend of the luxury goods in
the market in order to mitigate the potential risks exposure.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types of
risk within the organisation and the external environment with
active management participation and effective internal control
procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.
Details of its risk management system are elaborated on pages
38 to 64 under section “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 29 February 2024, our Group had a total of 50 staff
(28 February 2023: 50). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$31.7 million for FY2024
(FY2023: approximately HK$29.6 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee. Bonus based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits mainly include contributions to statutory mandatory
provident fund scheme to our Group’s employees in Hong Kong.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and other stakeholders
to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The Company will
continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During FY2024, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Company and its employees, customers and/or other
stakeholders.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Our Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or disposals
during FY2024.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business activities of the Group were denominated in HKD.
The Directors did not consider the Group was exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risks during FY2024. As the impact
from foreign exchange exposure was minimal, the Directors were
of the view that no hedging against foreign currency exposure
was necessary. In view of the operational needs, the Group will
continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time to
time and take necessary actions to minimise the exchange related
risks.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any present plans for material investments and capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET W& DM

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global economy is expected to recover with
a slow and steady pace. Amidst looming uncertainties, including
US presidential election results and the timing of the Feds’
rate adjustments, we remain cautious about the local economy
outlook.

With the launch of a new premium service center at East Tsim Sha
Tsui MTR Station and cutting-edge mobile app, clients will be able to
obtain preliminary collateral evaluation and loan valuation, as well as
to apply for loan with increased convenience. By providing an efficient
and streamlined one-stop loan solution, catering to the evolving needs
of clients, the Group is dedicated to enhance customer experience and
expand our potential customer base. We will continue to integrate
new technologies into the pawn sector to modernize the industry, in
order to maintain our strong industry leading position.

As the market has digested the deferral of Fed's interest-reducing
cycle, the Directors believe that there will be limited impact on the
Hong Kong property market. Property prices have been adjusting
from historical high to a relatively reasonable level, thereby
lowering the business risk. To grasp expansion opportunities, the
Group strategically partnered with PACM Group (Holdings) Limited
to establish a limited partnership fund (the “Fund”) which marks
our entry into the real estate private credit institutional investment
management sector. For details of the Fund, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 12 March 2024 and 17 April
2024. We will remain cautious about the property market and
prudently manage investment business to reduce the impact
of market volatility and maximize the returns of investors and
shareholders.
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The Board is pleased to submit this report of the Directors
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 29 February 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing secured financing business in
Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 29 February 2024 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 76
to 172 of this annual report.

CASH FLOW POSITION

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended 29
February 2024 is set out and analysed in the consolidated
statement of cash flows set out on pages 80 to 81 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND

At our Board meeting held on Monday, 27 May 2024 (the “Board
Meeting”), our Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend (the “Final Dividend"”) of HK0.76 cents per ordinary
share, together with the interim dividend of HK1.04 cents per
share declared and paid during FY2024, represent 40.1% of
the profit attributable to the shareholders (“Shareholders”) for
FY2024.

The Final Dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at
the AGM and will be paid on Wednesday, 21 August 2024 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of our Company at the close of business on Thursday, 8 August
2024.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the identity of our Shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/
F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 25 July 2024. The register of members of our
Company will be closed from Friday, 26 July 2024 to Wednesday,
31 July 2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered.

In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders of our
Company who are entitled to the Final Dividend, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
at 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 August 2024. The register of
members of our Company will be closed from Tuesday, 6 August
2024 to Thursday, 8 August 2024, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 8 of this
annual report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$86.4
million (2023: HK$86.1 million) has been transferred to reserves.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 29 February 2024, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of the Company was approximately HK$290.3 million
(2023: approximately HK$316.9 million).

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 29 February 2024 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the
year ended 29 February 2024 are set out in note 25(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 29 February
2024 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chart Man (“Mr. Chan")

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
Mr. Ng Siu Hong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam On Tai
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
Dr. Yip Ngai

Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”) and code provision B.2.2
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules, one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation
at the annual general meeting of the Company and will be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chan,
Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM are
set out in the circular sent to the Shareholders of the Company
together with this annual report.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 29 February 2024, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"):

FTERRRRORAEABRD z2ERR
KRB

RZE-_WF_A=-+NB BEEXARTEET
BABFRTA AR BIRIEES KSR ([#3%F
RHEGREI]) E336EBETHFE 2 ERMATREE
TAL(BEZFRARREZTHRABRIN) RARF]
o ARG HEEERSIAE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares (Note 2)
BaERa ST
BRRAE/1HE 19 LimREA (ftzt2)
Kwan Lik Holding Limited Beneficial interest 1,347,247,024 69.91
(Note 1) (f#iZ1) ey 1
Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited (Note 1) (f7&t1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,347,247,024 69.91
REEEE 2 B
TMF (Cayman) Limited (Note 1) (ffi£1) Trustee 1,347,247,024 69.91
(Note 3) (Htit3) XFEA
Ms. Chan Nga Yu (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,347,247,024 69.91
BRI+ (M 3) WEETER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
B A R RARE 2 #an
Ms. Mui Hang Sin (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,347,247,024 69.91
1B A L (F3E3) BigETER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
Bt A RIFA 2 R
Great Roc Capital Limited (Note 4) (#77#4)  Beneficial interest 190,706,029 9.87
Enks
Mr. Yan Kam Cheong (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 190,706,029 9.87
BREB LA (Hizta) REEEE 2 Em

Notes:

1. The 1,347,247,024 shares is held by Kwan Lik Holding Limited,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TMF (Cayman) Limited.

2. There were 1,927,236,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 29
February 2024.

3. These 1,400,724,588 shares were owned by a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan, Ms. Chan
Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are
the discretionary beneficiaries of the trust.

4. Great Roc Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yan Kam Cheong
who is the substantial Shareholder of the Company.
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 29 February 2024, there was no
other person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as having an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register,
whose record is required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 29 February 2024, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, are set out below:
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Interest in the shares of the Company RAEQBRMD 2=
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 2)
BAasKRa St
EEHEA REm=tE LBREE (HieE2)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,347,247,024 69.91
PREAS ST E (BYatT) [
Beneficial interest 53,477,564 2.77
ExEn
Mr. Chan (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,347,247,024 69.91
FREA (HaET) 5 ErEEm
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
B A K EFE 2 s
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,347,247,024 69.91
PREF 2L (KaE1) HI5ErtEn
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
gt A HERE 2R
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,347,247,024 69.91
PRuE 2t (KatT) [
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
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Notes:

1. These 1,400,724,588 shares were owned by a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan, Ms. Chan
Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are
the discretionary beneficiaries of the trust.

2. There were 1,927,236,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 29
February 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 29
February 2024 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no other contracts of significance between
the Group or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

There were also no contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Group or any of its subsidiaries by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a
party and in which any director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS
During the year under review, no Director has interests in any

business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorisation of the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting each year. The remuneration of the
executive Directors is subject to review by the remuneration
committee, and their remuneration is determined with reference
including but not limited to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors.
As for the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, their remuneration is determined by the Board
upon recommendation from the remuneration committee. Details
of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 10 and
the five highest paid individuals are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service agreements.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the letters of
appointment.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with members of the Group
that is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and letters of
appointment, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
Company’s business were entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during FY2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the revenue from rendering of
services attributable to the major customers of the Group during
the financial year is as follows:
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The largest customer TN 5.3%
Five largest customers in aggregate AARE @G 24.0%

At no time during the year ended 29 February 2024 had the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (to
the best of the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in these
major customers.

The Group had no supplier due to its nature of principle business
activities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at 27 May 2024,
the Company maintains the prescribed percentage of public float
under the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Kwan Lik Holding Limited, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan,
Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu and Ms.
Mui Hang Sin entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed
of Non-competition”) in favour of the Company on 21 February
2013 pursuant to which they have undertaken to the Company (for
itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or he or she
would not, and would procure that its or his or her associates (other
than any member of our Group) would not, directly or indirectly,
carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or
hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, principal,
agent, director, employee or otherwise) any business which is or
may be in competition with the current businesses of the Group
during the restricted period.

Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr.
Chan, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow
Macksion are the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust whose trustee,
TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire issued share capital of
Kwan Lik Holding Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the
parties to the Deed of Non-competition on compliance with each
of their respective undertaking thereunder.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by the parties to
the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that the Deed of
Non-competition is fully complied with and duly enforced during
the year ended 29 February 2024 and up to the date of this
report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions of the Group constituted continuing

connected transactions (the

“Continuing Connected

Transactions”) for the Group for the year ended 29 February

2024:

Tenancy agreements

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

34

On 12 June 2023, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Hing
Wah HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a tenancy agreement (“Hing Wah
Tenancy Agreement”) with Kwan Chart (Holding) Company
Limited (“Kwan Chart Holding"”), which is indirectly wholly-
owned by a family trust (the “Chan Family Trust”) of Mr.
Chan (an executive Director), the beneficiaries of which were
Mr. Chan and his family members. Pursuant to the Hing
Wah Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart Holding shall lease
a premises to Hing Wah HK for a term of one year from 8
June 2023 to 7 June 2024 at a monthly rent of HK$80,000
and pay a monthly management fee of HK$3,300. During
the contract period, the management fee may be increased
by a maximum of 30% (up to HK$4,290) if and only if the
respective management fee payable by Kwan Chart Holding
increases.

On 12 June 2023, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Wai Wah
HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Wai Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Mr. Chan, an executive Director. Pursuant
to the Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement, Mr. Chan shall lease a
premises to Wai Wah HK for a term of one year from 8 June
2023 to 7 June 2024 at a monthly rent of HK$90,000.

On 12 June 2023, for the purpose of operating our head
office, Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Oi Wah HK")
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited
(“Kwan Chart Estate”), which is indirectly wholly owned
by Chan Family Trust. Pursuant to the Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement, Kwan Chart Estate shall lease a premises to Oi
Wah HK for a term of one year from 31 May 2023 to 30
May 2024 at a monthly rent of HK$52,000.
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(iv)  On 30 January 2024, for the purpose of operating one
of our pawnshops, Oi Wah HK entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Full Honour Tenancy Agreement”) with
Full Honour Corporation Limited (“Full Honour”), which is
indirectly wholly-owned by Kwan Lik Trust whose trustee,
TMF (Cayman) Limited, was a substantial Shareholder.
Kwan Lik Trust was a discretionary trust and the objects of
which included Mr. Chan, Ms. Mui Hang Sin (a substantial
Shareholder), Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (executive Director
and substantial Shareholder), Ms. Chan Mei Fong (executive
Director and substantial Shareholder), Ms. Chan Ying Yu
(executive Director and substantial Shareholder), Mr. Chan
Kai Kow Macksion (non-executive Director and substantial
Shareholder) and Ms. Chan Nga Yu (an executive director
of Oi Wah HK and substantial Shareholder). Pursuant to
the Full Honour Tenancy Agreement, Full Honour shall lease
a premises to Oi Wah HK for a term of one year from 1
February 2024 to 31 January 2025 at a monthly rent of
HK$70,000 with a one-month rent-free period from 1
February 2024 to 29 February 2024.

Annual review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

Although all the Continuing Connected Transactions are fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules,
these transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors who have confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to (or from) independent third parties; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions
that did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules made during the year were disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to
indemnify the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The coverage and the sum insured under the policy are
reviewed annually. Further, the Company’s Articles of Association
provide that Directors are entitled to be indemnified out of the
Company’s assets against claims from third parties in respect of
certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10
to 24 under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report, which forms part of this report of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement
of the relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, the Directors
are not aware of any non-compliance in any material respect with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group’s business and operations for the year ended 29
February 2024.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules are set out in the corporate governance report of this
report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the Group’s
existing business activities on the environment and complying with
the applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions as set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in
Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 29 February
2024 are set out in the environmental, social and governance
report which is to be issued within four months after the end of
the year ended 29 February 2024. The Group will provide the
report to its Shareholders by electronic means.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 March 2024, the Group entered into the subscription
agreement to subscribe for limited partnership interests in PACM
OW Global Special Situation Fund Il L.P., a Cayman Islands
exempted limited partnership at the subscription amount of
HK$112 million. The General Manager of PACM OW Global
Special Situation Fund Il L.P. fund is PACM OW GP Il Limited,
which is an associate of the Group. For further information, please
refer to the Company's announcements dated 12 March 2024 and
17 April 2024.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 29 February 2024 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited and a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman

Hong Kong,
27 May 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for FY2024. The Company is committed
to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance consistent with the needs and requirements of its
business and to enable the Shareholders to evaluate how the
principles of corporate governance have been applied. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise a
high quality Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all Shareholders.

Our Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) contained
in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

Throughout FY2024, our Company complied with the Code
Provisions, save for the deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 which
is explained below.

Code Provision C.2.1 requires that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive to be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (“Mr. Edward
Chan”), an executive Director, currently holds both positions. Mr.
Edward Chan has been the key leadership figure of our Group
and has been primarily involved in the formulation of business
strategies and determination of the overall direction of our Group.
He has also been chiefly responsible for our Group’s operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of our Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of our Group's business plans, our Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Edward Chan is the best candidate for both positions and the
present arrangements are beneficial and in the best interests of
our Company and its shareholders (the “Shareholders” or “our
Shareholders”) as a whole.

The Directors will review our Company's corporate governance

policies and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to
time.
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DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for leadership and control of the Company and overseeing the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated to the senior management of the Company
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

The Board reserved its decision for all major matters of the
Company, including: approving and monitoring all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to
the management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to
the senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating day-to-day operation and management of the
Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operation and production plans and budgets, and supervising and
monitoring the control systems.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024, the Board held six formal
meetings. Attendance of individual Directors at the Board meeting
for the year ended 29 February 2024 is as follows:

BE_Z-_MFEF_A -+ hBILFE EFSD 81T
ANAEREes BE-_Z-_ME_A-_t+HABILE
E-AfEEERESgeR 2B

Board Meeting

Annual General Meeting

Name of Director EEHR EExges BRRBERE
Executive Directors: HiTEE -
Mr. Edward Chan (Note 1) PRERSR L (MaET)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITHAE) 6/6 11

Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) BREE S (HELT) 0/6 0/1
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) BRI (Hat1) 6/6 171
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) BREF L (Batr) 6/6 171
Non-executive Directors: FHITESE
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (Note 1) BREABRICAE (BfatT) 4/6 11
Mr. Ng Siu Hong h#RREE 3/6 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUIFHITEE:
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert ZIKHEEL 4/6 11
Dr. Yip Ngai 2RET 4/6 171
Mr. Lam On Tai MEZREE 4/6 171
Note: Wit -

1. Mr. Edward Chan, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr, 1.
Chan Kai Kow Macksion are siblings. Mr. Chan Chart Man is their

father.

For the year ended 29 February 2024, apart from the meetings
of the Board, consent/approval from the Board had also been

obtained by written resolutions on a number of matters.

For the year ended 29 February 2024, one general meeting of the

Company was held.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Edward Chan, an executive Director, currently holds both the
positions of chairman and chief executive officer. Mr. Edward
Chan has been the key leadership figure of the Group, who has
been primarily involved in formulation of business strategies and
determination of the overall direction of the Group. He has also
been chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations as he directly
supervises other executive Directors and senior management
of the Group. Taking into account the continuation of the
implementation of the Group’s business plans, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Edward Chan is the best candidate for both positions and the
present arrangements are beneficial and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The current composition of
the Board is as follows:

EEg2AK

EeRBRANRESEN  BRENEHTES  —
B RTEE R BB N TES -EE SR
R

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEEME

Executive Directors:

HITESE -

Mr. Edward Chan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
BRRAR ST (EEFITEAEE)

Mr. Chan Chart Man
BREE X SE 4

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
FRIEH 2T

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
BREF L+

Non-executive Directors:
FHHITEE -

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
BRERIR 5 A4

Mr. Ng Siu Hong
hABRRT A

Independent non-executive Directors:
BIIFHTEE -

Mr. Lam On Tai

ML TREE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
BB L

Dr. Yip Ngai
EREL
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Member of Remuneration Committee
FMEESKE
Member of Nomination Committee

REZEEKE

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

YMEEEER

Member of Audit Committee
EZZEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REEZEGKE

Chairman of Nomination Committee
RAEEZECEE

Member of Audit Committee
EZZEEKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
HMEZBEXE

Chairman of Audit Committee
EREZEELE



Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have
such number of independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
was admitted as an associate of The Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (currently known as Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became
an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently
known as HKICPA) in September 1988.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 65 to 68
of this annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 65 to 68 of
this annual report, the Board members do not have any family,
financial or business relationship with each other.

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

MECHANISMS REGARDING
VIEWS TO THE BOARD
The Company has established mechanisms as detailed below to

ensure that a strong independent element on, and independent
views and input are available to the Board.

INDEPENDENT

(i) Composition of the Board and Board Committees

- The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs"”) and at least one-third of its members being
INEDs (or such higher threshold as may be required by
the Listing Rules from time to time).

- Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed
by the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain
Board committees, INEDs will be appointed to other
Board committees as far as practicable to ensure
independent views are available.
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(ii) Independence Assessment

- The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
Group’s nomination policy and the independence
assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with

regards to the nomination and appointment of INEDs.

(iii) Compensation

- No equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements will be granted to INEDs as this may
lead to bias in their decision-making and compromise
their objectivity and independence.

(iv) Board Decision Making

- The Directors (including INEDs) upon reasonable
request, may seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense, to assist the performance of
their duties.

- The Directors (including INEDs) shall not vote or be
counted in the quorum on any board resolution
approving any contract or arrangement in which such
Director has a conflict of interest.

- The chairmen of the Board shall at least annually hold
meetings with the INEDs without the presence of other
Directors to discuss major issues and any concerns.

The implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism was
reviewed on an annual basis. The Board considers that such
mechanism has been implemented properly and effectively during
the Relevant Period.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, and each of the non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date and is subject to
the re-appointment of each of the Directors by the Company at
an annual general meeting upon retirement.

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that any
Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at
such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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(iv)
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In addition, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
according to Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Non-executive Directors

Each of our non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and
shall continue thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the
terms of the letters of appointment.

Responsibilities of Directors

All the Directors received an induction on appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operation
of the Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. The Directors will also be updated from time to
time on the business development and operation plans of the
Company.

The management, consisting of the executive Directors along with
other senior management, is delegated with responsibilities for
implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board
from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations
of the Group. Executive Directors and senior management meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses of the
Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial
and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other executive
Directors was held to discuss the matters that they wish to raise.
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In compliance with Code Provision C.1.4, the Company will
arrange for, and provide funds for, all the Directors to participate
in continuous professional development organised in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep
them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of the
Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 29 February 2024 is summarised below:

BEFFAEXEC A5 RAABRYRBERS
BEFSMBETLER - HRTRRBEI - Tt
EREMEE R BHETEREAE
AR E R LR B SR ARER - L
IR AR E AR BN RERE DA ES RN
7T 2 AT S A T A« AR AT 3 AR
M ETRAR R EABRL EAEARD 2 5
aHi -

BE_TNF_A-TNALFE FEFMEX
Z AR E RSB AT -

Attending or participating in seminars/conferences/

Names of Directors

EEnA

corporate events or reading regulatory updates/
journals relating to director’s duties
HESSMHANE, & LEITHR
MECHEEREZRNESEA BT

Executive Directors
HITEF

Mr. Edward Chan
PRER S 4

Mr. Chan Chart Man
BREE A

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
BRIEH A+

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
PR 2+

Non-executive Directors
HHTEE

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
BRERIR 5 A4

Mr. Ng Siu Hong
hiEEEE

Independent non-executive Directors
BUIFHTEE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

RMEE L

Dr. Yip Ngai

ERE+

Mr. Lam On Tai

ML ZRFfE

46 BERLEEERERAR



DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard set out in Appendix C3
(Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers) (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules, in relation to
the dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, each Director
has confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 29 February 2024
and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
With the adoption of the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to comply with the Code Provisions, the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 23
May 2014. According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board
should be composed of directors with diversed skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience. The Board will review such measurable objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and assess the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee considered the Board composition was in compliance
with the Board Diversity Policy.

The existing members of the Nomination Committee include Dr.
Leung Shiu Ki Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, both are independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Edward Chan, an executive
Director. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
amongst other things:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

Corporate Governance Report

SEERRE

ESETEFRS
ARFEREFEEAQABHRM LR
C3 (EMBATAEFRTBSZ S 2IEFA) ([
PR ) AR

KRzRESFLETERR BE_FT_MF_A
“HABLEFERBEAFRALL  SEFCHER
H-BETRETRIFAH ZIRE-

EXZET

REZES

ARRZREZEGN _E—=F_A+HBKI"
B LW E AR WRE B R AR E E m R
BHE AR RANESTERELTEERR ([EEER
BERUACBE]) VB TTRGRY  RREEG 7R
HECR T NFRA-T=RAEIT - REEFE
REZTTEBER EEGRH TRIEE - &3 1E5)
Fi XIERBEESHEELR 2 ETEAX -E=
SR TR ZEAUFERR  URFRLEE R
HERZFERANGENEE - REZEERRES
BN AEETEXNEZ LR

REZBEHEXNBEERRIEF L RN L HEL
(MABBBIIFNITES) UERBREL (RTE
) RKEBLAREZEEER -

(i JRIBFRIZEFENRE RELEK (B35
eE B LER) YREFSRKTMEZR
HH R AR S R FIRDRRE

(il VEABEEERAUETESENENAL I
WEEIATREHEFEEIRHIERNESS
ffet

—EoEER L/



Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

(iii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(iv) to consider and make recommendations to the Board
regarding the re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the reporting
year. During the meeting, the Nomination Committee proposed to
the Board to re-elect the retiring Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chart
Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Dr. Leung Shiu Xi Albert, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and the structure, size and diversity of the Board. Please
refer to the table below for the attendance record of the meetings
of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 29 February
2024:

(i) FHEBIMIEMITERABLIE K

(iv), ZEEBREZFRES (LEEXIFREH)ET
B Rt AEE SR EE -

RAEZ B e 2 MR E R 1A )48k Ko B 32 P A8 vk
&R

REZEEXMEFEAGRT - REH -NEH
RAZECEBREFENRERRAF ARG LEER
EEFERFETE REFRERRKEBL -2
RESCENBUINTES BYUMRESTEZR
B RERZT TREIEEFRBE_FT_MF
“A-ThRLEFELFRAZE®SR 2CH:

Directors

=

Attendance/

Number of Meetings held
HEBTEBRRE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)

PGS (JEEZESEE)
Mr. Edward Chan

G E e

Mr. Lam On Tai

M4

During FY2024, the Nomination Committee has performed the
following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board,;

2. discussed and recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of Directors;

3. reviewed and assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors of the Company; and

4.  reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
diversity policy and nomination policy adopted.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which specifies the procedures, process and criteria of
the nomination of Directors.

Selection criteria for nomination and appointment of
Directors

When making any recommendations in relation to the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider, but without limitation, the
following factors when evaluating the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

° competence, experience, skills, expertise, education and
professional qualifications, background and other personal
attributes of the candidate that can best complement and
expand the skill set and expertise of the Board as a whole;

o reputation for integrity;

o availability of the candidate, as to whether the candidate
can devote sufficient time and effort to properly discharge
his duties as a Director; and

. other factors as the Nomination Committee or the Board
may deem relevant.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive director, he or she must comply with the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. Such
candidate shall be independent in judgment and character, and
shall be able to act in the best interests of the Shareholders.

Nomination procedure and process

The Nomination Policy sets out the procedure and process in
relation to the nomination of Directors as follows:

° members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall
identify, nominate and invite suitable candidates;

o the Nomination Committee shall determine the suitable
candidate for appointment in accordance with the selection
criteria set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy;
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o in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee shall review and evaluate the
candidate’s overall performance and contributions, and
make recommendations to the Board and/or Shareholders
for consideration in respect of his/her re-election in general
meetings; and

o for any individual that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a director in the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate with reference to the criteria
stipulated above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with good
corporate governance practice and regulatory requirements.

DIVERSITY POLICY

The board diversity policy of the Company became effective in
August 2013. When the Company designs the Board composition,
it will consider the Board’s diversity from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service, perspectives and insights to be brought to
the Board, skills and experience, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All
Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Board has set measurable
objectives based on key areas including gender, age, cultural
and educational background and professional experience to
implement the board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee
will review the board diversity policy as appropriate; and review
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the board diversity policy, and the progress on achieving the
objectives, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

The Board targets to achieve gender diversity on the Board, which
shall not be lower than the Listing Rules’ requirement. The Board
is committed to further improving gender diversity as and when
suitable Director candidates are identified. Currently, there are
seven male and two female Board members, which meet the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
is of the view that the Board has the combination of diversity and
balance and is suitable for the business of the Group.
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The Company implements a diversified employment policy. It
provides women with equal employment opportunities, ensures
equal pay for male and female employees for equal work, and
provides women with gender-appropriate physical and mental
health facilities and career development plans. As at 29 February
2024, the ratio of female employees of the Company was 20%.

For further details about how the Company achieves gender
diversity, please refer to the Company’s 2024 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, determine on behalf
of the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for the Directors and senior management, assess
performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The existing members of the
Remuneration Committee include Mr. Lam On Tai and Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki Albert, both are independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Edward Chan, an executive Director. Mr. Lam On Tai is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
reporting year. During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the Directors’ salaries and other allowances and the
remuneration of the senior management and assessment system.
Please refer to the table below for the attendance record of the
meeting of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
29 February 2024:
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During FY2024, the Remuneration Committee has performed the
following work:

1.

reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management based on their performance;

reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group's
remuneration policy;

reviewed and recommended to the Board the terms of letter
of appointment of independent non-executive Directors; and

reviewed and recommended to the Board the level of
remuneration for independent non-executive Directors
and ensure that their level of remuneration are linked
to their contribution in terms of time commitment and
responsibilities undertaken.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on the

skills,

knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and the

performance of each Director, and to the profitability of the
Company and prevailing market conditions during the year.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph E.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (as
described under the section “Directors and Senior Management”)
by band for the year ended 29 February 2024 is set out as
follows:
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Number of

individuals
Remuneration band HFMEE AE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%& £ 1,500,000/ 7T 2
Audit Committee BEREES

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, amongst other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and the internal control systems of the Group; to propose
the appointment or removal of the external auditors and the
effectiveness of the audit process; to discuss with the external
auditor on the nature and scope of the audit work; to review
and supervise the Group’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and their implementation; and to
review the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
financial reporting improprieties. The existing members of the
Audit Committee comprise Dr. Yip Ngai, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
and Mr. Lam On Tai, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. Dr. Yip Ngai is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the reporting
year. During these meetings, the Audit Committee confirmed
the appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and fixed its
remuneration, and reviewed the procedures of internal control
of the Group. The Audit Committee was of the view that the
procedures of internal control of the Group were effective. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the interim and annual results of
the Group for the financial year and the auditors’ report prepared
by the external auditors in relation to accounting matters and any
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material findings during the audit. The Audit Committee was of —A-+HhBIFFELEEREZESSH 20k
the opinion that such financial statements and report complied
with the applicable accounting policy standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosures have been made. Please refer to
the table below for the attendance record of the meetings of the
Audit Committee during the year ended 29 February 2024:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings held
= HEBITEBRRE
Dr. Yip Ngai (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
EREBL (FRZESTE) 212
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
ZICHEE L 212
Mr. Lam On Tai
ML FTEE 212
Corporate Governance Function EERBEE
The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the EFERE (AFEE)HFTRRGAREZEXE
development and review of the policies and practices on corporate ABUR KT - URERETERREEREZE

governance of the Group and monitoring the compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, and reviewing the corporate governance
compliance with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the annual
report.

During FY2024, the Board has performed the corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner
in accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the
timeframe stipulated in Rules 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
29 February 2024. Currently, the Company’s external auditors are
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (the “Auditors”).

For the year ended 29 February 2024, the fees paid or payable by
the Company to the Auditors amounted to approximately HK$1.0
million, which was all for audit services.

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 69 to 75 of this
annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound enterprise risk management and internal control
system and through the Audit Committee and, if necessary, an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal control
services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance and strategic risk control functions. The
Board understands that such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues identified to the Board.
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During the year under review, the Company also appointed
an independent professional consultancy firm, BT Corporate
Governance Limited (“"BTCGL") to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCGL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of BTCGL as well as the comment (if any) of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group reviewed its enterprise risk management framework
during the year ended 29 February 2024. While the Board has the
overall responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal
controls are maintained, management is responsible for designing
and implementing an internal control system to manage all kinds
of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversights risk management and internal audit functions.
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Principal Risks

In the reporting year, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks.
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Compliance Risks No significant risk identified
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Operational Risks
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Financial Risks

i) Risk of downturn of the real estate market in Hong Kong
ii) Default risk under the condition of economic downturn

Risk of cash shortage due to significant financial difficulty of the borrowers

Bt 3% B RERARNE A KM HIRE 2 RO ER

Strategic Risk
KRB

No significant risk identified
W B E AR

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed
by operations management, coupled with risk management
monitoring carried out by the finance team and independent
internal audit outsourced to and conducted by BTCGL. The Group
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks
of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register
is updated by management as the risk owners with addition of
new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least
annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This
review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk related parties have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to those
risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take follow-up
action in an efficient manner.
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The Group’s risk management activities are performed by the
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management framework will be evaluated at least
annually, and periodic management meetings are held to update
the progress of risk monitoring efforts. The management is
committed to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily
business operation processes in order to align risk management
with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more cost
effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the SFO. The internal control mechanism includes information
flow and reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements,
disclosure procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls operating
and financial performance and sets appropriate policies for risk
management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The
Board delegates the implementation of strategies and day-to-day
operation of the Group to the management.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We are committed to conducting business in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and the highest ethical standards.
We promise to conduct our business with professionalism,
honesty, and integrity in all business transactions and relationships
and prohibit any activities that adversely affect the integrity and
reputation of the Company. Creating a fair, transparent, and
honest work and business environment is our goal. We have
zero tolerance for bribery, extortion, and corruption. We require
every loan transaction we make, as well as every Director, senior
management and employee to comply with it.
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Inside Information

The Company has set up an insider information policy (the
“Disclosure Policy”) to ensure that the Company shall be in strict
compliance with the disclosure obligation of inside information,
that inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination
of such information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company acknowledges its obligations under Chapter 13 of
the Listing Rules and the principles of inside information as set
forth in the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Disclosure
Policy stipulated responsibilities, guidelines and logistics in the
assessment, approval and dissemination of inside information,
strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential information
and established procedures for responding to external enquires or
rumours.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang, the company secretary appointed by the
Board and an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the
Board, possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and is
capable of performing the functions of the company secretary. The
Company will provide fund for Mr. Cheng to take not less than
15 hours of appropriate professional training in each financial year
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 29 February 2024, Mr. Cheng had taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, in circumstances that the
Group is profitable and without affecting the normal operations
and business of the Group, the Company may consider declaring
and paying dividends to its Shareholders.

When considering whether to declare any dividends and
determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, inter alia, the following factors: (i) the financial
position of the Group; (ii) the capital and debt level of the Group;
(iii) the general market conditions; (iv) any cash requirements for
any future development plans of the Group; (v) any restrictions on
dividend payouts imposed by any of the Group’s lenders; and (vi)
any other relevant factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The payment of the dividends by the Company will also be subject
to any restrictions imposed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands as well as the articles of association of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report

SEERRE

REHE

ARFEHEARBHEEBR (HERK])  BEKX
NABBETREABHENERE  EARHEBEHT
BERIEEHAEZR RFHEARFRE YHAE
BRAMFEMEMBRER - AARMERELTH
AE+=8 THEELBF KRG ROITEHIIH AR
HERA - WERRRTE T /S HEREMRARH
EMEE oI MR TIF BEREREMERK
AR WERIEEINRERLES ORF -

NREIME

ERRE N AREEER T2 AAIMWE  WAKRQR]
BE EZgRAEAGIEERRER THE
BITARIMEZBEE - AR B HERE L EIREES
MEIE ETARAIE3 295 EE ST BFERE LM
DS ENE 2 A EEEEI - RNBEZT ZF =
AZTHhBILEFEE  BAEDESTLR15/ R
BB -

REBUR

ARFDRA—EREBER ([REBE]) - RER
BB RAKEERNATYEARE FHEE
REBZERLT ARATEBAEBRRE KKK
s

EEZRERGEREIMNBRERETRESHEN E2T
BEE (EFaE) UTEE : ()VAER 2Bk
(NVRNEBEHE D REEKFE (i) BTN (iv)FEA
EETMAREREAZNEZAMREFER (VEE
BT E AFTHEIN Z AT I SRR S R (vi)ES
SARERAEE 2 TWHMBARRE -

ARBRMNEEIARFAEHERAVEARARER
BERMARATEINZ ERRGIFTHRR

—TomEFR H9



Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the
Shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will from time to time
review the dividend policy and may exercise at its absolute and
sole discretion to update, amend, and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time as the Board deems fit and necessary. There is
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any specific reporting period.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed
to waive any dividends was made by the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Effective Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the Shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Board also recognizes that
effective communication with the Company’s investors is critical
in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree
of transparency to ensure the Shareholders and the investors
of the Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate communications on the
website of the Company.

In respect of each matter to be considered at the annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-
election of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the
Chairman.

Pursuant to Code Provision F.2.2, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the relevant committee or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders.

Pursuant to Code Provision F.2.2, the Company will invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Shareholders’ Rights

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of voting rights (on one vote per share basis) in the share
deposit of the requisition, in aggregate at least one tenth of
the capital of the Company. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment
of dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited:

Address: 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point
Hong Kong
Email: srinfo.hk@boardroomlimited.com
Tel: (852) 21531688
Fax: (852) 30205058

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company
at the following designated contact, correspondence address,
email address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Attention: Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang
(Company Secretary)

Address: Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower,
No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email: brian.cheng@oiwah.com.hk

Tel: (852) 28332002

Fax: (852) 28919831
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The Company aims to promote and maintain an effective
communication with Shareholders and investors (both individuals
and institutions) to ensure that the Group’s information is
disseminated to Shareholders and potential investors in a timely
manner and enable them to have a clear assessment of the
Group's performance.

Extensive information on the Group's activities and financial
position will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, circulars and other corporate communications
which will be sent to Shareholders and/or published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.pawnshop.com.hk).

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Company through
channels including (i) Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the
Company, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, for enquiries
on shareholdings; and (ii) Company Secretary of the Company for
direct questions, request for publicly available information and
provision of comments and suggestions.

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 31 July
2023 at which Directors have attended by person to meet the
Shareholders, answer their enquiries, and to understand their
views.

During FY2024, the Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the communication with shareholders and
investors. As there are multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place as detailed above, the Board considered that
the ways of communication with shareholders and investors are
enough and effective.
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3. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

()

(ii)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director
as a Director:

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association,
a Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting should lodge (i) notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director; and (i) notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected, at either (a) the
head office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms
2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, or (b) the registration office
of the Company in Hong Kong at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The period
for lodgment of the notices mentioned above will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may
lodge a written request, duly signed, at the head office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong marked for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar and upon confirmation by the share registrar
that the request is proper and in order, and is made
by a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion
decide whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the
notice of meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
Shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(M

Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting of the Company.

Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of a special
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of an ordinary
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 29 February 2024, there was no change in
the Articles of Association of the Company.

A copy of The Articles of Association of the Company are available
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the

Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREXZ), aged 52, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is also a director
of all the subsidiaries within the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for our Group’s overall management,
strategic planning and business development. He has over 22
years of experience in business management and pawn loan
business. Mr. Chan is currently the chairman of The Hong Kong
and Kowloon Pawnbrokers’ Association Limited (&hiR¥pe
BBRA7]) and honorary chairman of Macau General Chamber
of Pawnbrokers (BFIE MM E). Mr. Chan has been the
Vice Chairman of Hong Kong General Chamber of Property
Finance Limited since March 2014. Mr. Chan obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the City
University, London, United Kingdom in July 1994. Mr. Chan is the
son of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of Ms. Chan Mei
Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of
whom are our Directors.

Mr. Chan Chart Man (BR%X), aged 93, is our founder and
executive Director. He is also a director of each of Oi Wah Holding
Limited ("Oi Wah Holding”), Oi Wah HK, Wai Wah HK, Hing
Wah HK and Oi Wah Capital Limited. Mr. Chan is responsible for
advising on overall strategic planning and business development
of our Group. Mr. Chan established the business of our Group
in 1975 and has played a significant role in the growth of our
business. He has over 47 years of experience in finance and pawn
loan business. Mr. Chan is the father of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow
Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (FR335), aged 54, is our executive Director
and chief operating officer. Ms Chan is also a director of all the
subsidiaries within the Group. Ms. Chan joined our Group in
2007 and is responsible for the overall operations of our Group's
business. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Town
and Country Planning from the University of the West of England,
Bristol, United Kingdom in September 1996. Ms. Chan also
obtained a diploma in Gemmology and Gem Diamond diploma
from The Gemmological Association and Gem Testing Laboratory
of Great Britain in January 2006 and January 2007, respectively.
Ms. Chan is a fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great
Britain. Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and
the sister of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr.
Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREERE

Ms. Chan Ying Yu (BR¥HI), aged 58, is our executive Director.
She is also a director of all the subsidiaries within the Group
and the authorised representative of the Company. Ms. Chan
joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for overseeing our
administration and human resources matters. Ms. Chan obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant Management
from the Middlesex University, United Kingdom in July 1995
and was elected as an associate of the Hotel and Catering
International Management Association in October 1995. Ms. Chan
is the daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr. Chan Kai Kow
Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (BRE{ZR), aged 68, was appointed
as our non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr. Chan is
a lawyer with 37 years of experience in general practice. He has
passed solicitor qualifying examinations in Hong Kong and was
admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in March
1984 and has been a partner in Chow C.L. & Macksion Chan
since 2001. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Pure
Mathematics from The University of Calgary, Canada in June 1978.
Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Ms. Chan Ying
Yu, all of whom are our Directors.

Mr. Ng Siu Hong ({R#BEE), aged 43, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 1 August 2019. Mr. Ng has over 19 years of
experience in financial investment and business management. He
currently serves as a responsible officer and managing director of
Quester Capital Asset Management Limited, a licensed corporation
which is entitled to conduct type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.
Prior to joining Quester Capital Asset Management Limited, Mr.
Ng acted as Managing Director of Elstone Securities Limited
from May 2021 to May 2023 and Managing Director of Kingkey
Securities Group Limited from May 2013 to April 2021. Mr. Ng
had also served at Account Manager at UOB Kay Hian (Hong
Kong) Limited from Oct 2007 to May 2008, and served as vice
president at Phillip Securities (Hong Kong) Limited from June 2008
to April 2013. He was awarded a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
and Finance from City University of Hong Kong in 2002 and an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam On Tai (%% %), aged 52, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2017. He has more
than 26 years of experience in banking and securities industry, in
which over 23 years of experience was accumulated in advising
on corporate finance relating to various listing and restructuring
transactions. Mr. Lam currently serves as the managing director of
Red Solar Capital Limited (412 &ZAREGRAF]). Mr Lam received
his diploma in general business management from the Lingnan
College ((8FI&3F%) (now known as the Lingnan University (58
KE) in Hong Kong in November 1994, and his master's degree
in business administration from the University of Sheffield in
the United Kingdom in December 1996. He also obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in laws from the University of Wolverhampton
in the United Kingdom in July 1998 through a distance learning
course.

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (£JK#), aged 75, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013.
Dr. Leung was an assistant vice president in Citicorp International
Limited from 1987 to 1992. Dr. Leung was admitted as an
associate of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
(now known as Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) in
February 1987 and became an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (now known as HKICPA) in September 1988. Dr.
Leung obtained a Doctorate degree of Philosophy in Economics
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in September
2007, a Master degree of Business Administration from Brunel
University, United Kingdom in December 1985 and a Diploma in
Management Studies from The Polytechnic of Central London,
United Kingdom in October 1983.

Dr. Yip Ngai (¥%), aged 50, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Yip is a
jewellery appraiser and valuation expert and has over 29 years of
experience in jewellery and art industry. Dr. Yip became a fellow
of the HKICPA in May 2012. He has also been appointed as a
specialist by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
& Vocational Qualifications since July 2011 and as a technical
advisor (watch and jewellery) by the Employees Retraining Board
since September 2013. Dr. Yip obtained a Doctorate degree of
business administration from the EU Business School, Switzerland
in May 2011, a Master degree of Business Administration from the
Federation University Australia in December 2008 and a Bachelor
of Business (Accounting) degree from the Monash University,
Australia in November 1999. Dr. Yip obtained a diploma in
Gemmology from The Gemmological Association and Gem Testing
Laboratory of Great Britain in October 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (¥5#E#), aged 41, is our chief financial
officer and company secretary. He joined our Group in June 2012
and is responsible for overseeing the financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Cheng worked at KPMG from 2006 to 2012 and his last position
was assistant manager. Mr. Cheng was registered as a certified
public accountant and a certified public accountant (practising) of
the HKICPA in January 2010 and September 2012, respectively.
Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2006.

Mr. Ng Kai Man ({fE{X), aged 63, is our marketing director
and is responsible for managing and operating our property
mortgage department. Mr. Ng joined our Group in 2013. His main
duties are strengthening customer relationships by scheduling
regular personal and company visits in Hong Kong in order to
explore new business opportunities with potential customers. Prior
to joining our Group, he had been working in Wing Lung Bank
since 1988 and was promoted to senior financial manager in
2010. Mr. Ng obtained a Diploma in marketing from Hong Kong
Productivity Council and Hong Kong Institute of Marketing in
1999 and a professional Diploma in marketing management from
Hong Kong Management Association in 1996 respectively. In 1999
he was elected full member of Hong Kong Institute of Marketing
and awarded as Professional Marketer (ProM) in 2001. He also
obtained an advanced professional Diploma in financial planning
from The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and
Continuing Education in 2006. In 2005, he has been admitted
as a Certified Professional Marketer (Asia) by Asia Marketing
Federation, which is a member of World Marketing Federation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (Z¥8#) is our company secretary.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheng are set out under the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” in this section.
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House,
311 Gloucester Road,

B XA R

BEXPH(ER)EAMEHABRAT
HEMEEE T E3115%
EZRELZEASAB17IE

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF Ol WAH PAWNSHOP CREDIT HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 76 to 172, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 29 February 2024, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 29 February 2024 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment of loan receivables

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 100 to 105.

The key audit matter

As at 29 February 2024, the Group’s loan receivables
amounted to approximately HK$823.7 million.

The determination of loss allowances using the expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification
of loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss
given default, exposures at default, discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors including value of collaterals.
Management judgement is involved in the selection of
those parameters and the application of the assumptions.

We identified the impairment of loan receivables as a key
audit matter because of the complexity of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgement involved in
determining impairment allowances and because of its
significance to the financial results and the total assets of
the Group.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of loan
receivables included the following:

o understanding the ECL model used by the Group;

o evaluating the reasonableness of critical assumptions
and methods applied in the ECL model;

o recalculating the amount of ECL allowance using
the ECL model based on the above parameters and
assumptions and test the completeness and accuracy
of selection of input data used in the ECL model on
a sampling basis;

o assessing the forecast cash flows for credit-impaired
loan receivables by understanding and evaluating
the viability of the Group’s recovery plans and
evaluating the timing and means of realisation of
collateral; and

o evaluating the presentation and disclosures on the
impairment of loan receivables in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 EERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

72 BERLEEERERAR

HtvEH
BARESHRYURMELAE - AELRETIRRN
ERAZ2HEL  BTRERAMBRRRAMZ
AT -

BAYGEAMBERRZERALTRERLMES
IAHZEEMERBEREME A EE SR

4 A

BARMESREMBHRR BT RACEEEMNE
HEE  HidiEd ZEEEMESETELEAN
BHRRIRPEETBIETATHEIBEAFEERE
BREUFEFESAERRAZBER - EREFINT
Z T IRBFIRSEMESFEEAHERRML -
BMFERESZETE -HEHE BB EMR

==

BRAEERERZEENGESHBR
RAREZEME

BEARESAARRBES G ASE M ETEY
BHREEANBEARGIZHEEKREREMF
BREEHMBRER TH BRREERRA/EES
MEHRZBETFERRREFRBRMEBZEXN
SR RALPT R < AR IER & -

ERBEEMEREAY - BEQARNERRENE &
SEFBELE 2 YHEERBER T HEERTHE
REBMZER URERFECEREHER K
¥ BERAEFAER BEEEBEIUFLLE %K
PIEEMERERER -

BEZZRECRAEE BEREZYBHREERE-



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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B XA R

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguard applied.
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From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5591

Hong Kong
27 May 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBmRHEMEEBAR

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

Notes 2024 2023
k=3 —E-QmEF ZT=F
$'000 $'000
Ft Tz
Revenue I #5 5 179,307 165,841
Other income, gains or losses Haplg A -~ WziskEia 7 4,730 3,734
Operating income BERA 184,037 169,575
Other operating expenses Hib &M 8(c) (59,499) (57,075)
Impairment losses recognised on loan U E R < R E 518
receivables 16 (15,126) -
Profit from operations e RR 109,412 112,500
Finance costs & RS 8(a) (6,130) (9,773)
Profit before taxation BRBL AT A 8 103,282 102,727
Income tax FTiSH 9 (16,835) (16,620)
Profit and total comprehensive IR RFEAE F AR FI R
income for the year attributable to 2HWALE
shareholders 86,447 86,107
Earnings per share (in HK cents) - BRER (Bl) —EXR
basic and diluted e 12 4.5 45

76

BENXEEERBERAF




e BRI R

As at 29 February 2024 R=Z=NF = A=+ NH
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

Notes 2024 2023
F5E —EMF —TE_=F
$'000 $'000
T T+t
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment B K& 13 3,019 2,036
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 13,210 14,719
Interest in an associate Gl SlNET =) T 15 - =
Loan receivables e E K 16 36,699 67,926
Other receivables H b fE W FRIE 18 1,740 3,463
Deferred tax assets RETIAE = 17 2,408 109
57,076 88,253
Current assets REBEE
Repossessed assets &y Bl & E 13,875 10,226
Loan receivables JEWE K 16 937,230 885,304
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A U SR IE 18 9,925 7,340
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 19 170,600 162,447
1,131,630 1,065,317
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K E fth E T /1B 21 4,906 5,487
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERRFEL 20 10,000 10,060
Loans from the immediate holding HBIZERARZER
company 23 47,500 47,500
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 6,772 7,803
Debt securities issued BRITERES 24 25,991 11,993
Tax payable FERTRR IR 6,642 6,972
101,811 89,815
Net current assets REEEFEE 1,029,817 975,502
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBAERE 1,086,895 1,063,755

ZECNFEFR



Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position

e MBI R

As at 29 February 2024 R=Z=—MF ==+ N.H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

Notes 2024 2023
B —E_NE —TE-=F
$'000 $'000
T T+t
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Debt securities issued BRITEEES 24 - 25,973
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 7,213 7,737
7,213 33,710
NET ASSETS EEREH 1,079,682 1,030,045
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR #E 25
Capital [N 19,272 19,272
Reserves (e 1,060,410 1,010,773
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,079,682 1,030,045
The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 172 were Z76% 17282 MR EHETERN Y

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
May 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
BRENER ST
Director

EF

78 BEMECEERAERAT

FAA-tERIERRETE  AHTIALRE

RE

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

PREEH 2 +
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREBR

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

Capital
Share Capital ~ redemption Other  Retained

Notes Share capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

itz k& RHEE  EARE EARERE  HtRE  REEA gt

$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000

T r T T r T S

At 1 March 2022 R=3--§=f-H 19,289 14,726 44,963 2,09 12,001 889,837 982,911

Profit and total comprehensive income for ~ FREFIR2EMALE

the year - - - - - 86,107 86,107

Purchase of own shares EREEG ) 25())i) (17) (423) = 17 = = (423)
Final dividends approved in respect of the 5t HEE BB ETRERIR T

previous year and paid during the year LAHRE 25(b) - = = - = (13,683) (13,683)
Interim dividends declared and paid during ~ RERERREN P RS

the year 25(b) - - - - - (17,730) (17,730)
Special dividends approved in respect of the 3t FEEREHETRERRN

previous year and paid during the year RIS 25(b) - - - - - (7.137) (7.137)
At 28 February 2023 and 1 March 203 ~ R=Z==F-B=tN\RAK

ZE-CE-A-H 19,2712 14,303 44,963 2,112 12,001 937,394 1,030,045

Profit and total comprehensive income for  EREFIR2EHAL%E

the year - - - - - 86,447 86,447
Final dividends approved in respect of the 5t HEEEHETRERIRA

previous year and paid during the year LAERE 25(b) - - - - - (16,767)  (16,767)
Interim dividends declared and paid during ~ RENERREA 2 FHRE

the year 25(b) - - - - - (20,083) (20,083)

At 29 February 2024 R=2=mE-A=+hE 1922 18303 44963 2 12001 98T 1,079,682

—=opmEsEwR /9



MERTRER

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Bank interest income
COVID-19-related rent concession

Government subsidy

Finance costs

Net (gains) losses on loan receivables at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL")

Impairment losses recognised on loan
receivables

Operating cash flows before changes in
working capital

Increase in repossessed assets

Increase in loan receivables

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

(Decrease) increase in accruals and other
payables

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of plant and equipment
Bank interest received

Payment for acquisition of assets

Net cash generated from (used in)
investing activities

REER
B& i B2 7
BN G S IEEL TR -
BB Rt ITE
FREEEZITE
RITH A
2019 M SR EE
EDE
BURS 8k
RN
BATEG ABE ([EAT
Bt AB&]) 2 EKER
2 (Wzs ) BEFEE
TR ESRER 2 REEE

LEESRPA2EE
RERE

R E B AR

FEE FIE I

5 RAMERIE ()
BD

st BA R (L HUR
()

XBHERE
ENEENEH

BEEBAEREFE
REXRK
R MR R
B IRERTTA 8
WA E 2 50R

REXBME (FA)
RERR

BENXEEERBERAF

Note
B aE

33

2024

a1 3

$'000
T

103,282
802

8,720
(1,830)

6,130

(16)

15,126

132,214

(3,649)

(35,809)

(862)

(351)

91,543

(19,464)

72,079

(1,785)
1,830

45

2023
—E-—F
$'000

Tt

102,727
593
8,847
(516)
(775)

(888)
9,773

13

119,774
(2,745)
(37,323)
790

1,397

81,893

(8,797)

73,096

(317)
516
(9,495)

(9,296)



Financing activities

Repayments of debt securities

Dividends paid

Repayments of bank loans

Repayments of other loans

Finance costs paid

Repayments of principal on lease liabilities
Repayments of interest on lease liabilities
Payment for purchase of own shares

Proceeds from other loans

Proceeds from bank loans
Government subsidy received

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

year

Analysis of components of cash and cash

equivalents:
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

mERTRER

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

MEXK
BREHES
ERKRE
EEBITEN
fEEH B
ENEEXRAR
EEEERE AS
EEHEABIME
AE= g ]

B G Fris 08
RITERZATEHR
B R R

RMEXK AR EFE

RERBRESEEYWEN OAD)
HH
FAZRERREEEY

ERZRERREEEY

ReRREEEVARDD 2
i

RITEH RS

RITEX

Note 2024
BsE —E-NF
$'000
T

(12,000)
25(b) (36,810)

(5,406)
(8,766)
(929)

(63,911)

8,213

162,387

170,600

19 170,600
20 -
19 170,600

2023
T
$'000

Tt

(108,043)

(44,243)

206,630

162,387

162,447
(60)

162,387

ZECNFEFR
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
secured financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn
loans and mortgage loans. Details of the principal activities
of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Kwan Lik Holding Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), and TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. as trustee of a reserved power discretionary trust for the
benefit of Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Mui Hang Sin and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, which
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands, respectively. These
entities do not produce financial statements available for
public use.

The Company’s registered office is located at Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands and its head office and principal place
of business in Hong Kong is located at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"” or “HK$" or “$"), which is
also the functional currency of the Company, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand ($'000) except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")

Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") which are effective for the Group's financial year
beginning on 1 March 2023:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
amendments to HKFRS
17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar
Two Model Rules

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e S e

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE—Z—N4E - A=+ A BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

2.

84

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)”) (CONT'D)

Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs
(CONT'D)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and
examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help
entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions,
but has affected the disclosures of accounting policies as set
out in note 3.

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 8 -
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates, and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. They also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 #EZ—Z_WF_A -+ HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)”) (CONT'D)

Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs
(CONT'D)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 -
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning liabilities. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at that date. For all other transactions,
the amendments are applied to those transactions that occur
after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The amendments had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMEE

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

2.

86

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)”) (CONT'D)

Amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS

16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS
21

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clouse!

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'

Supplier Finance Arrangements'

Lack of Exchangeability?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the
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amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for loan receivables at
FVPL that are measured at fair values, at the end of each
reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

88

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and disposal of repossessed
assets in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or

a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially same.

BENXEEERBERAF

EXEEEESR (&)

EFaNWE
EAEENBREBBRETRERBELRHEL
WelEER  AEREHRAD BB -

RN AR R BRS BRRE BT
BRBEERANBHEMER 2 R B2 A
BRI - ABT = - AREEHE SRR
gz -

o IR :ERBEEFINZAN
o  IR2:BRIAHWFZBHNEL
e I3 EEXRHE

e PR BRHEOIRECHTZIENE
£

o HB5:E (IRN) BERTKENTEHE

B o

E (IR BHNEEETKE  EREBNER
EHREERIRBZ [EFE] EETEPK
AR BRI -

BHOREE - RAEEREARE (L—HAEM
HBRTE ) 2 — R IR BARR 2 RS m kR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONT'D)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

o The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a
customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Interest income

Interest income for all financial assets are recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE—Z—N4E - A=+ A BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

3.

90

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONT'D)

(ii) Fee income
Fee income is recognised when the corresponding
service is provide, except where the fee is charged
to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In
these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the costs or risk are
incurred or is accounted for as interest income.

(iii) Disposal of repossessed assets

Disposal gain or loss is recognised when the buyer of
the repossessed assets takes control of and accepts the
goods.

(iv) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
Group's returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to shareholders of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to shareholders of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

92

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to financial assets and
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. If the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are provided for, and a
liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the associate’s
accounting policies conform to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
is recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

94

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D)

The requirements of HKAS 36 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the net investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the associate is
disposed of.

When an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate, the Group continues
to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D)

When the Group’s ownership interest in an associate is
reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity
method, the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest is reclassified
to profit or loss if that gain or loss would be required to be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are unrelated to the Group. The Group's
share in the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated.

The Group applies HKFRS 9, including the impairment
requirements, to long-term interests in an associate to which
the equity method is not applied and which form part of
the net investment in the investee. In applying HKFRS 9 to
long-term interests, the Group does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount of long -term
interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee
or assessment of impairment in accordance with HKAS 28).

Financial instruments

The Group initially recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

96

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Financial assets

Financial assets represent loans receivables which mainly
comprise pawn loans and mortgage loans, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Pawn loans are
loans provided whereby personal property such as gold,
jewellery and diamonds, watches and consumer electronic
products are used as collateral for the security of the loans.
Mortgage loans are loans secured by real estates.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

. amortised cost, if the loan and receivable is held within
a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest
("SPP1"”). Interest income from the loan and receivable
is calculated using the effective interest method;

o FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the loan and receivable comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses or impairment gains or losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the loan and
receivable is derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss; or

° FVPL, if the loan and receivable does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the loan and
receivable (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Financial assets (CONT'D)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment the Group considers:

3 contingent events that would change the amount and
timing of cash flows;

° leverage features;
o prepayment and extension terms;

o terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from
specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

o features that modify consideration of the time value of
money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

(i)  Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the
debt instrument on initial recognition. For originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including expected credit
losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) (CONT'D)
(i)  Amortised cost and effective interest method (CONT'D)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount
at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “Revenue” line item (note 5).

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other income,
gains or losses’ or ‘other operating expenses’ line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 26(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

Expected credit loss (“ECL") are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

o fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

. variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT'D)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

o 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

o lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on loan receivables (exclude pawn loans at FVPL)
that are measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using individual basis based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT'D)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In respect of the mortgage
loans and pawn loan receivables at amortised cost which
have been past due for less than 1 month, the amounts
mainly represent occasional delay in repayment and are not
an indication of significant deterioration of credit quality of
the mortgage loans and pawn loan receivables at amortised
cost. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects of the
debtors’ repayment ability as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic information
that relate to the Group’s operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument'’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

3 existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT'D)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONT'D)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the
financial instrument has a low risk of default, ii) the debtor
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )
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104

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT'D)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

3 it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

o the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT'D)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONT'D)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-trading,
or 3) designated as at FVPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Leasing
Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as leasee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect
to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

108 BEMECEERAERAT

EXEEEESR (&)

HE

HEZES

RIEBEMBRSESEAFE 165 MEHOMTHE
AR P — ER B ] R P2 6 B R Bl B B 2 AR i DA SR
BARE: AIZeBREsHE-

EEBEBABEA
AEBRBHFERFEEHNRTBEBRNAES
HE -BREHHE (ExAHEHHMAKR AT
ARINEAAZKATATEHEZERECES)
S REBBMEAERAEAZ T HE L HHER
EREEEMMIEHERARE RREHEMS -
AEENHERANREREERRBHEN AR
AR

HEERE

REEBEH AREZE AR A NEEREALZ
REFEHERE HEFRRHEERS 2
BEIR - R RBEE B EE AR - BIAKEERE

(BRI -

AAEMEAGRKAEE CHEFRBEEEM
XA (BREEBEERR) REMEEKHEHES

HERERNFAMBHRKRES RBILIAR -

HEABEEBRENREEARREEREZF
B (ERERNEZE) MR EREENRRRE M
MEFAMETHKTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Leasing (CONT’D)

The Group as leasee (CONT'D)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received. Whenever the Group incurs
an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased
asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under HKAS 37 “Provision, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”. The costs are included in the
related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Rights-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from COVID-19
related rent concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient. They are depreciated over the shorter
period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the
lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Leasing (CONT’D)
The Group as leasee (CONT'D)
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

For rental concessions relating to lease contracts that
occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the practical
expedient not to assess whether a COVID-19-Related Rent
Concession for lease contracts is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of
the following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes were not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

BENXEEERBERAF

EXEEEESR (&)

HE (8)

REFELZRBA (E
20198 mE R IEE 2 2 Z
F2019BMRmERE BN EEFEEENHE
AHEBNESER  AEBEEERAERER
AT EEBHREAAMN20198 R FE=KE
MvlecEReETAHEEE] BERETHEE
BERAR2019BRFSFNERTZEEENES
TR MEZRER N HIFTA IR

s MENFEHEHHENLETRELER
EEPHAHEREABHERNERZERE
HRIEERE

s HENZNEMBRIEFERER_-F
“FEARNA=ZTASKZRRENMR &

o THEMHMERRGEHLEEAES-

ABEARBAITTEE DA S RREHHE
ENTREEINER - UE—FABEAE BV BR
SEAF1REENE AR (HEBHIU I
&R - RBERARHENKHERIDEE
NHRARR - HEHEREET T RBEUARRZE
FEEMANEST EER AR BN RN
MmeHESHE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Leasing (CONT’D)
The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor. Leases
for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset. If
the head lease is a short-term lease to which the group
applies the exemption described above, the sublease shall be
classified as an operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (the “"CGU") to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Impairment losses on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (CONT’'D)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGU, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGU, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGU.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGU. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loan receivables granted under
the Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Chapter 166 of the laws of
Hong Kong), the Group takes possession of the collateral
assets from the customers. This possession takes place once
a loan becomes overdue, subject to a grace period granted
at the discretion of the Group in certain cases.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the amortised
cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, which is generally below the net realisable
value of the repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the
assets, the related loan receivables are derecognised from
the consolidated statement of financial position. Repossessed
assets are carried at the lower of the amount initially
recognised or net realisable value and are therefore written
down if and when the net realisable value falls to below the
carrying amount of the asset. The excess/shortfall of the net
proceeds over the carrying amount of the repossessed assets
is recognised as a gain/loss upon the disposal of the assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand
deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are short-
term (generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather for investment or other purposes.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time
of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. When different
tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of
the periods in which the temporary differences are expected
to reverse.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Income tax (CONT’D)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of salaries, annual bonus, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
as defined contribution schemes. The employer's monthly
contributions to the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of
each employee’s monthly salary, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to profit or loss of
the Group for the year concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

118

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Employee benefits (CONT'D)
Long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to
make such payments in the event that such a termination
of employment meets the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of probable future long
service payments based on the best estimate of the probable
future outflow of resources which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group at the reporting
date.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group;

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMEE

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Related parties (CONT’'D)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of businesses and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type of class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

120 BEMECEERAERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the net realisable
value of repossessed assets and leasing transactions,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e S e

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

4.

122

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that has a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of loan receivables

The Group determines the impairment of loan receivables
based on assumptions about ECL. Key parameters included
the identification of loss stages, estimation of probability of
default, loss given default, exposures at default, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors including value of collaterals. At every
reporting date, the default rates are updated. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 29 February 2024, the carrying amount of loan
receivables was approximately HK$823.7 million (2023:
HK$811.8 million). During the year ended 29 February 2024,
an impairment loss of approximately HK$15.1 million (2023:
nil) had been recognised. Among that, the Group had
written off approximately HK$1.1 million (2023: nil) expected
credit loss as the respective borrower was fail to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full and the management
determines that there is no realistic prospect of recovery of
such credit obligation.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong including pawn loans and
mortgage loans.

Revenue represents interest income earned on pawn loans
and mortgage loans and results on disposal of repossessed
assets. The amount of each nature of business of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

AEBNEIZXEBRAREAENRETAEARE
(BRAEERRRBERER) X5 -

Wasig S ERRIRIBEREFAMRMZF 2
WARRHERWBIEE 2 EE - FA - BEXE
BHEER 2 WSS T -

2024 2023
—E-WE e
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Revenue from pawn loan business HE SR ER 2 W=
— Interest income from pawn loan —IRERFIREFTE 2 R
receivables calculated using the effective BERZFBHRA
interest method 9,477 14,411
— Interest income from pawn loan — BN THER AR 2 B
receivables at FVPL BEERZFBERA 63,367 56,693
— Gain on disposal of repossessed assets — HE LB & = 2 Was 6,715 3,205
79,559 74,309
Revenue from mortgage loan business RIBERE T ER < W
— Interest income from mortgage loan —IREBRFEREFTE 2 EUBIR
receivables calculated using the effective BEFERZFEWA
interest method 99,748 91,532
179,307 165,841

Gain on disposal of repossessed assets is the revenue from
contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15
and the timing of recognition is at a point in time. The cost
of disposal of repossessed assets for the year ended 29
February 2024 amounted to approximately HK$58.3 million
(2023: approximately HK$49.2 million).

During the year ended 29 February 2024 and 28 February
2023, the Group’s customer base was diversified and no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue.

HEKKBIEE 2 WREEEVBEREERE
15%)?%@.?9)2@@3%]5545’3/\%74&@ i #&

ROFEHAE—REMS - BE_T_MNF_A
_—HLEliif HELKEEE 2 AL R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e S e

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

6.

The Group has one reportable segment, which is the
provision of secured financing business in Hong Kong,
including pawn loans and mortgage loans. Therefore, no
additional reportable segment and geographical information
have been presented.

SEGMENT REPORTING 6.

7 ERE

AEBE—EAZRSH MR EEREAER
BE (REAEERRBBEMER) 755
b - BEE 2 SV EONT 2R A M I B AR -

OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES 7. HiA - WEZHEER
2024 2023
— s ———
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Rental income He WA 1,796 574
Government subsidy (Note a) BT AERs (MsEa) - 888
Credit related fee income EERREZERKA 935 776

COVID-19-related rent concession (Note b) 2019w ERAEE S

2R (FiaEb) - 775
Bank interest income ERITH B UL A 1,830 516
Others HAth 169 205
4,730 3,734

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 28 February 2023, the Group
recognised the COVID-19-related subsidies, of which
amounted to approximately HK$888,000 related
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund. Government
grants has been recognised as other income on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises the staff costs for which the government
grants are intended to compensate. The Group
recognised as other income for the year as the Group
fulfilled all the relevant granting criteria. No subsidy
has been granted during the year ended 29 February
2024.

(b) Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has
received rent concessions from lessors in the form of
rent reduction. During the year ended 28 February
2023, the Group has early adopted Amendments to
HKFRS 16 and applied the practical expedient not to
assess whether a rent concession occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 is a lease modification.

124 BEMECEERAERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRMEE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

8. ERBLAIZEF

BREEADE N TR FNER (FEA) A TR IRRER

2024 2023
—E A —E-=4F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) ®ERA
Interest on debt securities issued BBEITEHESFE 1,908 4,209
Interest on other loans HEERF S - 885
Interest on loans from the immediate HBZERAR ZEFKF
holding company B 2,382 2,375
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERREZFE 911 1,235
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 929 1,069
6,130 9,773
(b) Staff costs (b) EIFA
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 21,737 20,368
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) B (5E10) 9,317 8,379
Contributions to Mandatory Provident ‘ElEAEe ([AE
Fund (“MPF") © 1) 2 526 511
Charge for provision for long service kR RHARE 2B
payment 109 338
31,689 29,596
(c) Other operating expenses () Hb&R=mxX
Premises and equipment expenses MERZBEREZ (T
excluding depreciation: BhE)
— rental of premises —MEHEE 3,417 3,853
— maintenance, repairs and others —1RE  HEREM 1,186 1,008
4,603 4,861
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR < 950 850
Depreciation of plant and equipment B R FETE 802 593
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 8,720 8,847
Advertising expenses BEHX 2,475 2,328
Bank charges IR1TE M 2,218 2,505
Legal and professional fees EERBEER 2,865 2,009
Net (gains) losses on loan receivables at BAFEF AR ZE
FVPL WERz (%) E
B (16) 13
Others HAth 5,193 5,473
23,207 22,618
59,499 57,075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

9.

126

INCOME TAX FRiGH
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
$'000 $'000
Fr F7
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERFEHR
Provision for the year FNEME
— Current tax — BNEAR IR 19,114 16,637
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFEEETR 20 -
Deferred tax (Note 17) EEBE (FFE17) (2,299) (17)
16,835 16,620

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2.0 million of profits of
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2.0 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For both
years, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entity of the
Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The profits of other Group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands

and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMEE

INCOME TAX (CONT'D)

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

9. FrE® (&)
£ POFT 19 51
BATHMHRMT :

BakEME2EBARZE

2024 2023

“BEF —E=F

$'000 $'000

Fx Tt

Profit before taxation B 15 A4t A 103,282 102,727
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRELAT R A 2 B EBIIE (HRE

calculated at applicable rates RABERGE 16,877 16,785

Tax effect of non-taxable income ARG 2 BTG & (302) (232)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR AR & 261 109

Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFEERENTE 20 =

Statutory tax concession (Note) EEBIBER R (M) (21) (42)

Income tax PS5 16,835 16,620

Note: Statutory tax concession represented a reduction of et AERBERE T = T _NFR_-F

Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year of assessment
2023/2024 and 2022/2023 by 100%, subject to a

ceiling of HK$3,000 and HK$6,000 respectively.

= FRBEFEZBBNERINR
100% - ' _EBR 9 Bl A3,0007% 7T 16,0008 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

10. EEFHN

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 29 February 2024

BE-_Z_NF_A-+HhBLFE

EZFHREFTEQBIGRHIEIIMNERAE
(REEENDER) ROIF2EEENT -

Salaries and  Discretionary  Contributions
Directors’ fees other benefits bonuses to MPF Total
HeR
Esne Hip3EA HERA BESHR @t
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T T
Emoluments paid or receivable FEZRERARAF
in respect of directors’ REMBRARZ
services in connection with BhEZR%E
the management of the SN
affairs of the Company and 2 8%
its subsidiary undertakings
Executive directors HTES
Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chief BRE =
Executive) (1783 - 1,800 4,305 18 6,123
Chan Ying Yu ) - 644 - 18 662
Chan Chart Man BRRX - 504 - - 504
Chan Mei Fong eSS - 1,050 - 18 1,068
Emoluments paid or receivable  BLEAAFEHITESE
in respect of a person’s FEVIFHTE
services as a non-executive ZFMRBEARR
director or independent A ENBAF
non-executive director, BRI EER
whether of the Company Bz e
and its subsidiary
undertakings
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ng Siu Hong hAAE 192 - - - 192
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion BREEK 192 - - - 192
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
directors
Lam On Tai Ses 192 - - - 192
Leung Shiu Ki 2k 192 - - - 192
Yip Ngai R 192 - - - 192
Total FCE 960 3,998 4,305 54 9,317

128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D) 10. EEHM (8F)
Year ended 28 February 2023 HE_T-=-"F-_A=-+N\AIEFE

Salaries and Discretionary Contributions to

Directors' fees  other benefits bonuses MPF Total
HeRk
ESHe HigA| [ peza BIE S @5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Emoluments paid or receivable FEZREERAH
in respect of directors' KEWBLAE
services in connection with BAEZREE
the management of the XS E IR
affairs of the Company and ZH&
its subsidiary undertakings
Executive directors HTES
Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chief BRI
Executive) (1TB2#) - 1,740 3,583 18 5,341
Chan Ying Yu BRER - 609 - 18 627
Chan Chart Man BRRX - 492 = = 492
Chan Mei Fong BREH - 991 - 18 1,009
Emoluments paid or receivable  FiEAMAIETES
in respect of a person’s BV IFHTE
services as a non-executive EGMRBAA
director or independent AERB AR
non-executive director, BX IS ERER
whether of the Company BzM&
and its subsidiary
undertakings
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ng Siu Hong hARE 182 = = = 182
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion BREREK 182 = = = 182
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
directors
Lam On Tai ML 182 - - - 182
Leung Shiu Ki Py[9: 182 = = = 182
Yip Ngai 2% 182 = = = 182
Total FeE 910 3,832 3,583 54 8,379
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT'D)

11.

130

The discretionary bonus for Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is
determined by having regard to his performance and the
Group's performance and profitability and the prevailing
market conditions.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is also the chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during both years.

During both years, there were no amounts paid or payable
by the Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 11 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

10. EEFM (&)

REEREEZHBIEATIRSERZRRAR
REB KB RBNEENARBITHREE

RESREENMBARA ZITHAS ([{THA
R MEXHEER e BEARBRES
TTRABEPTIRHEIRTS 2 % -

REEFER BEESRRIRBREEMFH
A -

RMEFEAR  AEBEYEINRENTESTK
TXMENAEE AR RRSFHMA LKA
DME RSl R F B s B AR B & 2 2R3k
TERBERfE(E -

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11. &S &M A L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEEaTMALTHFEREG (ZEZ=F M
two (2023: two) are directors of the Company whose B)EBARAES  HEZEHMRME101E -
emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of the BMRTI=%(ZZ_=F:=%) ALt zHMEsE
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2023: three) m
are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-NF —E—=
$'000 $'000
Ft Tz
Salaries and other benefits e LEMEF 3,599 3,439
Contributions to MPF SRIE B R 53 54
3,652 3,493

The emoluments of the above three (2023: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Bi=%(ZF_=F:=ZR)EaFMALz
FEATEER

2024 2023
—EMEF —F-=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AZ
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 702 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable AR AR R E(E IR EREF TR IE AT 8
to shareholders of the Company is based on the following e
data:
Earnings &EF
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 7K/ &) & 5 & 1 4 (X133 7
of the Company 86,447 86,107
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERZMETISE
2024 2023
—EmE —EB-=F
Number of Number of
shares shares
R E B izt £k B
'000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 March R=A—AZEZETLRRKR 1,927,236 1,928,876
Effect of purchase of own shares (note 25(c) BBRIAHKRH 2 E (i
(ii)) 25(c)(ii)) - (1,050)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F{Est B EIREA AR 2 L iE
for the proposes of basic earnings per A& hnteE 3924
share 1,927,236 1,927,826
The basic earnings per share and the diluted earnings per ARMEFESRERTECETEER 0F
share are the same as there were no potential dilutive BREABNEGREERFIER -

ordinary shares in issue during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMEE

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. BMERZ®E
Leasehold Furniture and
improvements fixtures ~ Motor vehicles Total
HEMERE FAREE B B3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
Cost: B :
At 1 March 2022 R-Z-_—_F=H—H 4,133 3,683 2,740 10,556
Acquisition of asset (Note 33) WBEE (f5E33) 911 - - 911
Additions NE 244 73 - 317

At 28 February 2023 and 1 March ~R-ZT==%

2023 “AZ+HNBR

“E-=%#=R—H 5,288 3,756 2,740 11,784
Additions AE 1,545 240 - 1,785
At 29 February 2024 RZZZMm4E

—A=-thH 6,833 3,996 2,740 13,569
Accumulated depreciation: e
At 1 March 2022 R-E-—#=f—H 3,982 3,290 1,883 9,155
Charge for the year FAZL 155 191 247 593

At 28 February 2023 and 1 March ~ R=ZT==%F

2023 “A-tNBR

“Z-_=%=H—H 4,137 3,481 2,130 9,748
Charge for the year FERXH 425 187 190 802
At 29 February 2024 RZTZME

—A=+hH 4,562 3,668 2,320 10,550
Carrying values: HREE:
At 29 February 2024 RZTZE

—A=thA 2,271 328 420 3,019
At 28 February 2023 R-Z-=fF

“A=tNR 1,151 275 610 2,036
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on LB ERFEEENREEMFERAFHRNE
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the EREERENT :

assets, as follows:

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of term of the MEMEEE TS5 F (AR
lease or 5 years ERE)

Furniture and fixtures 5 years REREE 54

Motor vehicles 5 years RE 54

{FeM) BEMECEERAERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

As at 29 February 2024, the gross carrying amount of
fully depreciated leasehold improvements, furniture
and fixtures, and motor vehicles that are still in use
amounted to approximately HK$3,776,000, HK$2,769,000
and HK$1,508,000 respectively (28 February 2023:
HK$3,776,000, HK$2,762,000 and 1,508,000 respectively).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

13- ME&%-ﬁ{% (n\ﬁ)
R-ZZE-_WNEF-—A=-+hA BEEXENENHEE
MEEE RARKBEURDEFANAE
IRAEAAE D BI#) 43,776,000 7T * 2,769,000
BT % 1,508,000 (ZE_=F A=+ N\
B :951%3,776,000 7T + 2,762,000 7T &
1,508,000/ 7T ) °

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 14. fAREEREEAE
LIABILITIES
(i) Right-of-use assets (i) FHAEEE
2024 2023
—EomEF —T-=%F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Leased properties — buildings HEME—1EF 13,210 14,719
The Group has lease arrangements for leased AEEEHEEMEIELHELRE -HE
properties. The lease terms are generally ranged from H—BNT—21F WEAINEEHE
one to five years with fixed lease payments. FRIE ©
Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended HEZZT_NF_A=-+ARIEFENE
29 February 2024 amounted to approximately HK$7.2 ﬁﬁ%ﬁfgmﬁi’]%7 200,000t (==
million (2023: approximately HK$3.3 million) due to — =4 :493,300,000/8 7T ) - REARHIE
new leases of buildings. FHE-
During the years ended 29 February 2024 and 28 BEZ_NF_A-thAhARZZ==
February 2023, the Group has subleased part of the F_A-+N\BLFE AEEEHMHEIL
leased properties. The Group has classified the sublease PHAEME - AEBEB LA B AEE
as operating lease. During the year ended 29 February ME-BE-_ZT-_NF_A=-+NHILF
2024, the Group recognised rental income from E AEEBRASHAEAEEECHAS
subleasing right-of-use assets of approximately HK$1.8 A 471,800,000 70 (ZE =4 : &
million (2023: approximately HK$0.6 million). 600,000/ 7T ) °
(ii) Lease liabilities (i) HEEES
2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
$'000 $'000
Frx 7
Current ME 6,772 7,803
Non-current IERED 7,213 7,737
13,985 15,540

—TomEFR 33



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMEE

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

134

(ii)

Lease liabilities (CONT’'D)

14. FREEEREERE (&)

(i) HEEE (&)

Amounts payable under lease liabilities HEBEE T ZENFIA 2024 2023
—ENE —E=F
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Within one year —&FR 6,772 7,803
After one year but within two years —FIRERFEA 4,326 4,405
After two years but within five years MEBRBRFA 2,887 2,978
After five years hFE - 354
13,985 15,540
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 1218 A RS 2 B ER
12 months (shown under current ;B (PR RE A EIR
liabilities) ) (6,772) (7,803)
Amount due for settlement after 12 R1I2EREEEZ
months S| Az IE 7,213 7,737

Rent concessions

During the year ended 28 February 2023, the Group
received rent concessions in the form of a discount
on fixed payments during the period of severe social
distancing and travel restriction measures introduced to
contain the spread of COVID-19.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 pandemic, which met
all of the conditions in HKFRS 16.46B, and the
Group applied the practical expedient not to assess
whether the changes constitute lease modifications.
Accordingly, during the year ended 28 February 2023,
rent concessions of approximately HK$775,000 (2024:
nil) had been accounted as negative variable lease
payments and recognised in the profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to the lease liabilities.

BENXEEERBERAF

HEEH

REBE-_ZT_=F_A-tN\HLFE"
#3BH 20197 AR 578 1 1 T HE 1T BR AR #L

32 BB B N H 1T RR
Bl MR AR S TR

B  AREER

HERRA2019ERAERRIEERTE
FEXBNEEBMBEHRELENS16.46B
REVFTB GRS BAKRECERAERER
HETHEEHETEBRBEEET - A
- RBE_T_=F_A-t+/\BLLF
E - HE&ERAT775,00087T (ZF=
FE)ARIEAREHENRALER
s R BRTHEREELAERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 14. FASERHEEE®E (&)
LIABILITIES (CONT’'D)
(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (iii) NEZERAZLHE
2024 2023
—E-EFE —EZ=F
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Depreciation of right-of-use assets — EREEERE —HEYWE
leased properties 8,720 8,847
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBZFIE 929 1,069
Expense relating to short-term leases EREHEEZRAY 3,417 3,853
Rent concession related to COVID-19 201978 MBS mAERE 2
(Note) HEER (MizE) - (775)
Income from subleasing right-of-use HEGERAREEE KA
assets (1,796) (574)
Note: As disclosed in note 14(ii), the Group has adopted BT : SAnBE FE14GI) T FR - ZIKEIE?%T%@%
the Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent ISR ERIE 1655 2 E5] - 201978
Concessions and the Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID- A im SR %@Z%ﬁﬁ%/ﬁ%&?/ﬁﬁﬂ%iﬁ
19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, HREBIE16R 2B T = —F A
and applies the practical expedient introduced by the =t+HZ#%M2019B MBS HAERE 2
Amendment to all eligible rent concessions received by S ER  WEREBET S| ANEBRER T E
the Group during the year ended 28 February 2023. EREBNEE_TE-_=F_A=1+N
HItFEREHNMEEaERHES TR -
(iv) Others (iv) Hftb
As at 29 February 2024 and 28 February 2023, the RZB_WNF_A-_+TNABR-T_=F
Group had no committed lease agreements not yet ZHAZTNB - REEN E ARG 8GR
commenced. HEWE -
During the year ended 29 February 2024, the total REBEZZ-_MF-_A=+NBILFE-
cash outflow for leases amounted to approximately ME RS ML AEEEL A13,100,00078 7T
HK$13.1 million (2023: approximately HK$12.7 ZE =4 :4912,700,0008 7T ) °
million).
(v) Restrictions or covenants on leases (v) FHEPRHITRZEE

As at 29 February 2024, lease liabilities of
approximately HK$13,985,000 were recognised
with related right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$13,210,000 (2023: lease liabilities of approximately
HK$15,540,000 and related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$14,719,000). The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

RZZEZWMFE-_A=-+NA BEEREE
B {5%913,985,000/8 7T * H ¥ K BRA(E
HEBFEX3,210,000/87T (Z B =4
FAE B E#415,540,0005 7T M 40 RA (& F #
BE#14,719,000/870) © B HAEAFTHE
HEEEMERERIN  HEHRILEE
MEMEZE - AEEETESBERRNK
Tﬁﬂo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

15.

16.

136

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

15. BFE D E 2

2024 2023

—E-EF —T=F

$'000 $'000

Frx Fx

Costs of investment in an associate (Note) RERE R R ERA (FisE) - N/AjE

Note: On 26 October 2023, the Group acquired 49% interest
in PACM OW GP Il Limited, which is incorporated in

i : R=ZE=—=F+A=+7"8  ~AEBEREPACM
OW GP Il Limited (ERFHSHEEMAKTL)

T0) Wt ARBE AR 218 E - B e A Fl 2 X

Cayman Islands, at a consideration of USD49 (equivalent to 49% Mg - B A49ETT (HENK3827E
approximately HK$382) and accounted for the investment as

an associate. The principal activity of the associate is fund BEBAESER -

management.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

16. EWWER

2024 2023
—ECME —E_=fF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Loan receivables at amortised cost: BREBERATEZERER
— Pawn loans —HEER 42,045 42,225
— Accrued interests of pawn loans —HEEH 2 EFFE 1,079 1,199
Pawn loan receivables FE R 2 B R 43,124 43,424
Less: Impairment allowance on pawn loans — & : % EFORERE — %3
Stage 3 F&ER (3,701) =
Net pawn loan receivables JE B 2 B FOF R 39,423 43,424
— Mortgage loans —IRIBEAER 769,499 754,491
— Accrued interests of mortgage loans —RBEIRE R 2 AR 25,095 13,860
794,594 768,351
Less: Impairment allowance on mortgage B E BFURBERE - F3
loans — Stage 3 =32 (10,330) =
Net mortgage loan receivables JEWIRIB R EFF 5 784,264 768,351
Net loan receivables at amortised cost W AT 2 2 W E FFRE 823,687 811,775
Loan receivables at FVPL: BAFEFABZZERE
b
Pawn loans HE S 150,242 141,455
Total net loan receivables ERERFHELE 973,929 953,230
Current portion included under current assets IR RBNEEIE 2 BIHIE 5 (937,230) (885,304)
Amounts due after one year included under  FIRIERBEEE FNA—F1E
non-current assets B HiFR0A 36,699 67,926

BENXEEERBERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group had
provided approximately HK$15.1 million expected credit loss
as the borrowers were unlikely to pay their credit obligations
to the Group in full. Among that, the Group had written
off approximately HK$1.1 million expected credit loss as the
respective borrower was fail to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full and the management determines that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery of such credit obligation.

16. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 16. ERE R (&)
In determining the expected credit losses for loan receivables, NEERKER 2 BREEEER EXERE
the Directors have determined using a number of key FRZIARESERBR  BEEF SRR -
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of HEFEOA N BHELEZEE EORR -
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given BEIR R AR AIEEE R IEE R EE N EMM
default, exposures at default, discount rate, adjustments for FEREZE -
forward-looking information, value of collateral and other
adjustment factors.
There has been no material change in the estimation REEFEA - FHE BN E R 2 BERER AT
techniques or significant assumptions made during both ZIEET RS e 2 ERBR R EE KEE) -
years in assessing the loss allowance for loan receivables.
Movement in impairment losses WEEIEEE
Expected credit loss
HHEERSE
2024 2023
—EC U4 —E-=F
Stage 3 Stage 3
HEIMER F3FEER
$'000 $'000
Tr T
At 1 March R=H—H - =
Impairment losses recognised on profit or loss A iBzHER 2 REEE
— Pawn loan —HEER 4,796 =
— Mortgage loan — BB E 10,330 =
15,126 -
Written off — Pawn loan isE — HmEE; (1,095) =
At 29 February/28 February RZAZ+hB/ZA=+N
H 14,031 =

HE_ZT-_NF-_A-ThHILFE ARER
ATKAIBERAEBER LT HEEEER A&
B2 TR 4915,100,0008 T2 FEHAE EE1E -
B ARNERARERASBEESZINEEE
&5 BEBEERAEHEERRUEERH#S
Ugm - ANEE D EE491,100,0005 7T 2 TEHA{E
BEE#E-
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

Ageing analysis

16. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

16. BB (&)

Ageing analysis of the gross amount of loan receivables is
prepared based on contractual due date and not net of loss

allowance as follows:

AR AT

ERAXNIHERAEEY BB REEZE

WE KRB R

BT

Pawn loans at Pawn loans at Mortgage
amortised cost FVPL loans Total
REER A BAYE
FTEZ STABEZ
HEEX HEEN RBEREX st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T Tr
29 February 2024 nl- -3
—R=thH
Not past due I 42 48 HA 25,797 145,138 411,942 582,877
Less than 1 month past due BHEI DM {E A 426 3,608 128,577 132,611
1 to less than 3 months past BENEAZE
due DR3MEAR 3,074 1,168 26,546 30,788
3 to less than 6 months past BEREAZE
due DrA6fE A - 328 125,784 126,112
6 months to 1 year past due BHEAZ1E 13,827 - - 13,827
Over 1 year past due EHFL £ - - 101,745 101,745
43,124 150,242 794,594 987,960
Pawn loans at Pawn loans at Mortgage
amortised cost FVPL loans Total
TREE SHRK AN BATE
AEZ FFABRZ
HEER HEER  RBEHRER FE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
28 February 2023 —E-=F
—A=+NH
Not past due I 160 A 41,782 138,161 507,483 687,426
Less than 1 month past due BEDIEA 1,097 2,045 91,675 94,817
1 to less than 3 months past BENEAZE
due DR3MEA 545 730 66,307 67,582
3 to less than 6 months past BH3EAE
due DR61EA - 519 39,474 39,993
6 months to 1 year past due wmHeE AR 1F — = 29,957 29,957
Over 1 year past due BHIF L £ - = 33,455 33,455
43,424 141,455 768,351 953,230

BENXEEERBERAF
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

16. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 16. ERE R (&)
Ageing analysis (CONT'D) SR AT (48)
As at 29 February 2024 and 28 February 2023, of these RZE_MF-_A-+tNABRZZ-_=F_"A
mortgage loans which had been past due for one month —+N\H ' EaH— @A sk £ 2RI EA
or above, except for several loan receivables amounted EXR BRESE TREIKEFRL151,900,000
to approximately HK$151.9 million (2023: nil) on which 75(_’;:—¢ T)ERBHEEBBEEELN
an allowance for expected credit loss amounting of 15,100,000/87C (ZB=—=F : ) 4 R¥{E
approximately HK$15.1 million (2023: nil) had been R - EHRSE2EERUBEEEHEZEER
recognised, the respective valuations of the collaterals ZAREBEAES - HERRERIWERD  miE
can fully cover the outstanding balances of these loans RAREARNEBRLE S FHEEERL  AEH
at the end of reporting periods. Among those impaired EEE491,100,000/8 70 2 FEER = B E518 - R
loan receivables, the Group had written off approximately PRER Z B EEER I EEHMBRTEE
HK$1.1 million expected credit loss as the borrower is fail BRTER WARTEERBIERERZEE
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full. In respect GEEERL -
of the mortgage loans which have been past due for less
than 1 month, the amounts mainly represent occasional
delay in repayment and are not an indication of significant
deterioration of credit quality of these mortgage loans.
17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17. BELEHRIREE
The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised THAERMEFERRZEERLERBEEEN
and movements thereon during both years: Higg):
The related
depreciation
in excess of Impairment
depreciation losses on loan
allowances receivables Others Total
BEHTERE ERERZ
ZEBETE WEEE Hty st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
At 1 March 2022 R-T——
=H—H 47 = 45 92
Credit (charge) to profit or A (B ) 1835
loss (Note 9) (FF5E9) 21 - (4) 17
At 28 February 2023 and 1 R-ZT-=4F
March 2023 —AZ=+NR
R_ZTB_=%F
=H—H 68 - 41 109
Credit (charge) to profit or  &FA (k) B
loss (Note 9) (KtEE9) (12) 2,315 (4) 2,299
At 29 February 2024 e it e
—AZtAhR 56 2,315 37 2,408
—Eopess 139
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE

(Expres

18.

140

sed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. ES R HEWRIE
2024 2023
—ECME —E_=fF
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Non-current JE BN ER
Others EoAh 1,740 3,463
Current B &R
Trade receivables B ZRINGIE 1,728 =
Deposits and payments in advance e RIBNFEIA 8,095 7,238
Others EAth 102 102
9,925 7,340

Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date
of billing. All of the trade and other receivables are not
impaired as the expected loss rate is close to zero and
expected to be recovered within one year.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables presented based on
invoice date which approximate to the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

BHRWHIAEBRERBEF60RAEIH - i
RIEHMERXOTE MAEES RE MR
HHRRE - WBHR —FRlkE -

AR ERERRS W aER BRE 2 #E
HIZ2) 2 BB R IR Z BRI AT AT

2024 2023

—E-{E T

$'000 $'000

Fr T

0-60 days 0ZE60K 1,728 =

Trade receivables that were not past due relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

BENXEEERBERAF

WA 85 RYRIRES B BT HIEQ
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

Cash at bank carries interest at prevailing market rates for
both years.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set
out in note 26(a).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash flow as
cash flows from financing activities.

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERBEEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term bank deposits RekBEE2EEDER ﬁﬁﬁﬁéxﬁi$ﬁlﬂ HA
for the purpose of meeting the Group's short term cash REFAFENERRTER RS _WMF = A
commitment, which carry interest at prevailing market rates i N = &fgiiiiﬁl —+tNABENT
ranging from 3.7% to 4.5% as at 29 February 2024 and 28 3.7% E4.5%WIRITHIHH G R
February 2023.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MmeHenegrkns RekReEBYEE
cash and cash equivalents include the following: LA & I8 -
2024 2023
—EopmE —F_=F
$'000 $'000
FE Tt
Cash on hand FERE 7,487 5,480
Cash at banks RITHE 163,113 156,967
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RiFA B ERREKR RS KX
statement of financial position REFEY 170,600 162,447
Bank overdrafts (Note 20) RITER (HIFE20) - (60)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RiRAEELRERZEL R
statement of cash flow HEEEY 170,600 162,387

MEFEE 2 RITHRSRRITHIS N EET S

RITREBRRREEFISE R EE26(a) °

MEFBRELEZEEHR:

TREJAEEREREED 2 BEEBH 2 F
B BEREERENFRECES BELDME
EZELLEﬁfﬁéumiaﬁéﬁiﬁﬂifﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%ﬁé
EZE\{,\°
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE - _NF_f -+ LB ILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’'D)

19.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (CONT'D)

RERASSEY (F)
BETE A AEYE: (H)

Loans
from the
immediate Debt
Lease holding securities Accrued
Bank loans liabilities company issued interest Total
ERER BT
BITEH HEAE LHAZER EBES A& st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7 7 7 7 7 7
At 1 March 2023 R=B==F
=A—-H 10,000 15,540 47,500 37,966 514 111,520
Changes from financing cash ~ REBERSTEZ
flows (Note) 28 (M) - (9,695) - (12,000) (5.406) (27,101)
Non-cash changes FRLEH
New lease arrangements (Note ~ T E% 5
29(a)) (FiEF29()) - 721 - - - 7,211
Finance costs incurred BELZBERA - 929 - 25 5,176 6,130
At 29 February 2024 RZZ-MmEF
ZA=thA 10,000 13,985 47,500 25,991 284 97,760

142 BEMECEERAERAT



19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT'D)

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRMEE

For the year ended 29 February 2024 #EZ—Z_WF_A -+ HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )

19. RERFASEEY (&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing RETBMEE2EEHER: (&)
activities: (CONT'D)
Loans from
the immediate
holding Debt securities Accrued
Bank loans Lease liabilities company issued interest Total
ERREK BET
RITER MEAE  RAZER EHE S JERH A & @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
At 1 March 2022 R=B=Z%
=RA-H 12,000 20,835 47,500 87,912 938 169,185
Changes from financing cash ~ REBERSTEZ
flows (Note) 23 (Ft) (2,000) (8,884) - (50,000) (9,074) (69,958)
Non-cash changes FRLETH
New lease arrangements (Note ~ #TfEE%ZHE
29(a)) (PzE29()) - 3,295 - - - 3,295
COVID-19-related rent 2019BHRAER
concession (Note 29(b)) HEREER
(BIZE29(0) ) - (775) - - - (775)
Finance costs incurred BELZRERAR - 1,069 - 54 8,650 9,773
At 28 February 2023 RZBZ=f
—A=tNE 10,000 15,540 47,500 37,966 514 111,520

Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds from

and repayments of other loans and bank loans in the

consolidated statement of cash flows.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

The details of the bank loans and overdrafts were as follows:

20.

fie: RensmrRfaRienexRP AMERRR
TERZ SRR RETFHE -

RITERREX
RITERRBELOFHENT -

2024 2023

“EIEF —T=F

$'000 $'000

S T

Unsecured bank overdrafts (Note a) EEIRRITES (MiFEa) - 60
Bank loans, secured (Note b) IRITER - A (KizEb) 10,000 10,000
Total bank loans and overdrafts RITER NS B 10,000 10,060
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

20. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONT'D)

144

Notes:

(a)

As at 29 February 2024, unsecured bank overdraft facilities
of HK$40.5 million (2023: HK$41.0 million) were provided to
the subsidiaries and utilised to the extent as disclosed above.
As at 29 February 2024, the bank overdrafts carried floating
interest rate ranging from prime rate minus 0.75% to prime
rate plus 1.5% per annum with repayment on demand clause
(2023: prime rate minus 0.75% to prime rate plus 1.5% per
annum with repayment on demand clause). As at the end of
the reporting period, the Group has approximately HK$40.5
million (2023: HK$40.9 million) undrawn unsecured bank
overdraft facilities carried floating interest rate and expiring
beyond one year.

As at 29 February 2024, the total secured bank revolving loan
facilities of the lower of HK$145.0 million (28 February 2023:
HK$145.0 million) and a certain percentage of the aggregate
principal amount of certain mortgage loan receivables of
the subsidiaries which are then sub-charged/sub-mortgaged
to the bank, the total available secured bank revolving loan
facility after taking into consideration of the drawdown was
HK$24.0 million (28 February 2023: HK$24.4 million). The
loan facility was secured by certain mortgage loan receivables
for the Group with a carrying value of approximately
HK$261.2 million (28 February 2023: HK$276.6 million). As
at 29 February 2024, the bank revolving loan carried floating
interest rate of three months Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 3.50% per annum and one month HIBOR
plus 4% per annum (28 February 2023: three months HIBOR
plus 3.50% per annum and one month HIBOR plus 4% per
annum). As at the end of the reporting period, the bank
facilities are expiring beyond one year.

As at 29 February 2024, except for the bank facilities

mentioned in note (a) and note (b) above, the Group also
obtained unsecured bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$20.0 million (2023: HK$15.0 million) were provided to

the Company and the subsidiaries and utilised to the extent

as disclosed above. As at 29 February 2024, the bank loans
carried floating interest rate of prime rate minus 0.75% (2023:
prime rate minus 0.75%). As at the end of the reporting
period, the Group had approximately HK$20.0 million (2023:
HK$15.0 million) undrawn unsecured bank loan facility
carried floating interest rate and expiring within one year.

During the years, the Group had fulfilled all the financial
covenants, if any, under the Group’s banking facilities and
all banking facilities were guaranteed by the Company and
secured by certain loan receivables held by the Group.

REAEEELRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. Bt E AR HEMWENRE

2024 2023
—E-WE o=

$'000 $'000
e Tt
Accrued interest expenses FEETF B 284 514
Accrued expenses EErERRAX 2,686 3,091
Provision for long services payment RAERTS SR 1,041 1,028
Other payable and deposit received E i T 038 K B WEUR € 895 854
4,906 5,487

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

OTHER LOANS

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
obtained uncommitted secured revolving loan facilities from
an independent third party. The limit of the facilities is the
lower of HK$200.0 million (2023: HK$200.0 million) and
a certain percentage of the aggregate principal amount of
certain mortgage loan receivables of the subsidiaries which
are then sub-charged/sub-mortgaged to the independent
third party. The facilities are interest-bearing at The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
("HSBC") prime rate plus 3.875% per annum (2023: HSBC
prime rate plus 2% per annum) and the tenor for the
facilities is one year.

As at 29 February 2024, the available uncommitted loan
facilities after taking into consideration of the drawdown
was HK$52.0 million (2023: HK$28.6 million). These loan
facilities were secured by certain mortgage loan receivables
for the Group with a carrying value of approximately
HK$65.0 million (2023: HK$35.7 million).

As at 29 February 2024 and 28 February 2023, there are no
outstanding balance of other loans.

22.
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sed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

LOANS FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING 23. EEEZERATZER
COMPANY
During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group BHE_T_NWF_A-—THABILEFE KEEF
obtained an unsecured revolving loan facility from the BB ’L“THX —EEEFRRERME
immediate holding company with a facility limit of HK$200.0 A& PR %A A&200,000,000/8 T (ZE - =4F:
million (2023: HK$200.0 million). The loans are unsecured, 200,000,000/870) - ZEERAEEAF  125%
interest-bearing at 5% per annum (2023: 5% per annum) ZEHE(ZE-=F 5% 2 FHEX) 5 BILIZ
and repayable on demand. EXRER -
As at 29 February 2024, the available loan facility RZZE_WNF_AZ+ANAB LG RERR
after taking into consideration of the drawdown was RIE A A ZERREANA152,500,0005
approximately HK$152.5 million (2023: HK$152.5 million) 7L (ZE==%:152,500,000/87C) ' MR =
and the accrued interest payable as at 29 February 2024 was TE_WFE_A=-_thB BENEFIELAE
approximately HK$26,000 (2023: HK$23,000). 26,000/87T (ZZE = =4 :23,000/67T) °
DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED 24, ERITEBES
2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
$'000 $'000
T T
Current D 25,991 11,993
Non-current Mk - 25,973
25,991 37,966

The debt securities are unsecured, denominated in HKD,
interest-bearing ranging from 6% to 7% per annum (2023:
6% to 7% per annum) with interest coupon being paid
semi-annually and will be matured between 2024 and 2025.
All debt securities issued are measured at amortised cost.

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group repaid

debt securities on maturity date amounting to HK$12.0
million (2023: HK$50.0 million).

BENXEEERBERAF

ZEBHBLFREERR  UBTFE ENT
6% ZET% ZFFNE(ZE_=ZF:6%ZE7%Z
FMR)FEEFFFIN—RERE  BER=
TOMFEE—T - AFHMER - FIBE EITE
R RN ARG & -

BHE_T_NWF_A-+hhBItEE &E£E
REIE B EEERES12,000,00087L (=
— =% :50,000,00057%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

25. EX - RERKE

Movement in equity (a) HEZ2EF
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBERE S K B0 B P B HA R 45
balances of each component of the Group's consolidated %Z;THE%W\\ FEEmEER AAFF
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of AR BRBOREVNEFRZEEFIF
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the e
Company'’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company AR &l
Capital
Share redemption Retained
Notes  Share capital premium Other reserve reserve profits Total
(i R& e Hftfife BARERE REEH @zt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i T T T
At 1 March 2022 R-B-—%
=h-H 19,289 14,726 56,964 2,095 276,293 369,367
Profit and total comprehensive EREH k2
income for the year A2 - - - - 7,888 7,888
Purchase of own shares DL 25(c)(ii) (17) (423) - 17 = (423)
Final dividends approved in 3 EEEE Sk
respect of the previous TRENER Z
year and paid during the AERS
year 25(b) - - - - (13,683) (13,683)
Interim dividends declared ~ RERER KRN
and paid during the year ZHERE 25(h) - - - - (17.730) (17,730)
Special dividends approved 3 EEEE Ik
in respect of the previous  TRERIER 2
year and paid during the BRIRE
year 25(b) - - - - (7137) (7137)
At 28 February 2022 and 1 W=E=Zf
March 2023 ZAZTNRR
ZECZE
=h-H 19,272 14,303 56,964 2,112 245,631 338,282
Profit and total comprehensive ERER k2
income for the year oS - - - - 10,218 10,218
Final dividends approved in St E(EFE A
respect of the previous TRERERZ
year and paid during the ~ REIRE
year 25(b) - - - - (16,767) (16,767)
Interim dividends declared ~ RERER KRN
and paid during the year RS 25(b) - - - - (20,043) (20,043)
At 29 February 2024 R=B-Mm%
ZR=thA 19,272 14,303 56,964 2,112 219,039 311,690

STomEFR (L]
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25. E& -#ERRE (&)

(CONT'D)
(b) Dividends (b) KE
Dividends payment during the year: FRZAFRRE
2024 2023
—E-E —EC=F
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERBD IR ZAE.
during the year:
2024 Interim dividend — 1.04 cents (2023: —Z—PUFrRHEIRE —
2023 interim dividend — 0.92 cents) 10400 (ZZE==4%F:
per share —E-=FHHREER
0.921l1) 20,043 17,730
2023 Final dividend — 0.87 cents (2023: T =FRERE -
2022 final dividend — 0.71 cents) per FR%0.87ML (ZE ==
share T _FEREREER
0.714) 16,767 13,683
2022 Special dividend — 0.37 cents (2023: —ZFE= —FERIRE —FX
nil) per share 037 (= ==F: &) - 7,137

Subsequent to the end of reporting periods, a final
dividend of 0.76 cents per share (2023: 0.87 cents
per share) in respect of the year ended 29 February
2024 per share have been proposed by the Directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

148 BEMECEERAERAT

HEHAE  EEEESREE -0
F-A-tTNBLEFERNABRESRK
0.76(l (Z=E==4 : &i%0.871l) - AR

AR A FE JE AR R AF A g EHEER F AT E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25. E& -#ERRKRE (&)

(CONT'D)
(c) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

() ER=E
(i) ZEREZRITRAE

Nominal value

Number of of ordinary
Note Par value shares shares
Bt HE RAEE EEREE
$ ‘000 $'000
T TR T
Authorised: EE
At 1 March 2022, 28 RZE-—4F
February 2023, 1 March =H—8"
2023 and 29 February —To=F
2024 —A=+NRB:
T
=R—Hk
“E-mF
—A=-t+AR 0.01 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
At 1 March 2022 R-ZE=-—4%F
=HA—H 0.01 1,928,876 19,289
Purchase of own shares AR 25(c)(ii) 0.01 (1,640) (17)
At 28 February 2023, 1 R-E-=F
March 2023 and 29 “A=+NRB:
February 2024 —E-=F
= =4
“EMF
—A=-t+AR 0.01 1,927,236 19,272

The holders of shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to
the Company'’s residual assets.

BB ABREBRTREE IR K
B WERRARAGH EHERR
R —F - FRE RN EARR A2 Rk
BEHZHRRFMHA-

“TomEFR |49



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e S e

For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONT'D)
(c) Share capital (CONT'D)

(i)

Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 28 February 2023, the
Company repurchased 1,640,000 shares of the
Company on The Stock Exchange with prices
ranging from HK$0.230 to HK$0.275. The
total consideration paid for these shares was
approximately HK$423,000. All these shares were
cancelled by 28 February 2023.

For the year ended 28 February 2023

25. EX-mERKRE (&)

(c)

IRA (&)

(i)

A=
HE_Z_=F_A-_+NHLF
£+ AR BREERZFTIR N F£0.2307%
JLE0.275B L 2 BHRE R AR A
1,640,0008% 8% {7 ° gLt ZERR D E S
2 HER(BH A423,0008 7T ° FT A%
ERPER-_ZE-_=F_A=_+N
HaEsH o

BHE_ZT-_=F"_HA=-_+/\HLF
IS

150

Number
of shares Aggregate
Month =Evi} repurchased Purchase price per share consideration
=3
ROEE EBEREEE ARE
('000) Highest Lowest ($'000)
(¥&) RS BS (Fx)
March 2022 —T__%=H 56 $0.238 $0.238 13
June 2022 —EFRA 1,096 $0.275 $0.270 296
September 2022 —ET-—FNA 152 $0.249 $0.239 36
November 2022 —EF_—
+—A 336 $0.237 $0.230 78
Total e 1,640 423

Pursuant to section 37(3) of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the repurchased shares. Pursuant to 37(4) of
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, an
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled of approximately HK$17,000 was
transferred from share premium to the capital
redemption reserve. The payments for purchase
of own shares with approximately HK$423,000
were charged to share premium.

BENXEEERBERAF

REFASFEERREFE37(3) K
ARAZBHETHRATIZERE LK
Mz EERER REFEFSER
BDEF37(A) % CEHEBRNEELY
17,0008 T2 FESEE A B d
BERZEAEOFE AEQE S
M1 B A 2 £9423,000/8 7T 2 B k{5
)i (B P AR o



25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R R MR

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

X -RERERE (&)

(CONT'D)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Distributability of reserves

There is no section in the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and article of association governing
the distribution of reserves. At 29 February
2024, the aggregate amount of reserve available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was approximately HK$290,306,000
(2023: HK$316,898,000), being the total amount
of share premium, other reserve and retained
profits.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company
may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

On 5 February 2013, Oi Wah Holding Limited
entered into an agreement to acquire the
amounts due to shareholders by Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Limited totalling HK$44,963,406
by issuing 1,000 shares at HK$1.00, as fully-
paid shares, to three of the shareholders of the
Company. The acquisition has been reflected as
a reduction in the amounts due to shareholders
and a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

Other reserve

On 18 February 2013, the then shareholders
transferred the entire equity interest in Oi Wah
Holding Limited to the Company, in return,
the Company issue 9,999,999 shares, as fully-
paid shares to Kwan Lik Holding Limited as
the consideration. The difference between the
historical carrying value of equity acquired and
acquisition consideration is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Other reserve”.

(d) REZMEREHN

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EEZ I HT REHE
HERSRARERANARG ZHEBE
BAAREZRERNEREREED
E2EBfi-MN-_TE-_ME=-A=+Ah
B ARRE=RE 2 HD IR
EHEEE 4 55290,306,0008 7T (=&
—=4%:316,898,000/8 )  BIA%
mE - B fFEERREB & F 8
B

K155 E

REFEFHEREE  ARALZKRND
BRI HEBED RSOK MR T
R - HERBEEE D RIS E
A& ARAATREREBBRER
REILiPACT T

B fE

R-—ZE—=9F_HAHB ' 0i Wah
Holding Limited&] 37 5% * LA HR[A)
AR =HREEEIT1,0000 FARE
BE1.008 T 2B RKRG  WiEE £
44,963,406 85 T2 BEREEFEER
FRA R EF IR FIE - 2 KB R A
JE - AR BR SR IEDR > I B S R 4 AR R
#hn e

Bt

RZZE—=F"A+/1\B ERRKRRE
MR F#EZEE R Oi Wah Holding
LimitedZ 2 #BRA#E s - XA R A
A Kwan Lik Holding Limited277
9,999,999 BB I 1E /KB = P
Wz v B R E AR ER(E
ZEBRBER S —AEREE WL A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

25. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONT'D)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (CONT'D)
(v) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the
nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

(vi) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group was not subject to external imposed
capital requirements, except for the loan covenants
attached to the interest-bearing borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
cash and cash equivalents net of bank loans and
overdrafts, other loans, loans from the immediate
holding company, debt securities issued and
equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company, comprising paid in capital and reserves.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to
its debt position. The Group’s strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position with the debt equity ratio, being the
Group’s total borrowings over its total equity, no
more than 150%, and ensure there was adequate
working capital to repay its debt obligations.
As at 29 February 2024 the Group and the
Company’s debt equity ratio were 7.7% (2023:
9.3%) and 11.5% (2023: 14.2%) respectively.
No change was made on the Group’s overall
strategy.

{FSM) BEMECEERAERAT

25.

EX - -RERKRE (&)

(d)

RE2MEEREWN (&)

(v)

(vi)

BA R #E
EABEORFEHCBORO ZE
=

BAXEHE
AEBEREAZHEZRBEDNRE
REBEFELLE 28 KB BY
HERKFEE ZEREERARE
BEERARZRE  HESEBIRE
EER R BEMESFA ABIER
& AEREHAZ RN RN E
RIRTE - st RIEEMANERZ R
Spe

AEENEARBERRE LIRS
FEY (MRRTERRES) H
WER BEBERAFRZER B%
TTEBE ST AR AR B BIR FE G #
o BRBHRAREE-

AREEEG N ERHEARREBET
ma MEE  NERRRRERER
TAEFEZESEEKFERY
BB AR 5 3R 2 o B AR R 2 [
RSP IR ERIEIRR 2 B3
BEARGRBIELRE -

REBERBEGHRNERER -
AEBZRBEEFER MEBFE
R FERRE - BEREREE (AIAS
B REERALEREATE) BB
150% ' WHERB EHEBEESEER
B - RZZE_WMF_A=+NA8
REBRARRzBEBEESLED
BNAETT% (ZE_=F:93% )%
115% (ZZE-=F:14.2%) - K&
B2 B RS SR MR A E o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

BERREERAVE

VALUE
Categories of financial instruments SRt T AR
2024 2023
—E-NF —E==
$'000 $'000
F it Tt
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost (including B HER AT EZ CRMEE
cash and cash equivalents) (BRERSRACEEY) 1,001,964 978,367
Financial assets measured at FVPL BAFEFABZZERMEE 150,242 141,455
1,152,206 1,119,822
Financial liabilities cMEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost WHEK AT EZ o/ AE 87,356 99,985

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, accruals and other payables, bank loans and
overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding company and
debt securities issued. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

As the core business of the Group is engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and
mortgage loans, the main risks associated with its business
are credit risk and the need to maintain a fairly liquid
position.

BEMEEBERBE
AEB7TEsMTARRERKER B RH
WA - RS NIRSEEY B EBRLE
I RITERREX EBIZERARZ
BERREBETERES BB T AZFHER
RN TR SR T ARBE AR E
EmzRR (FERR)  EERRERSHES
[R\Bg2 o & B8 QR fa] ok 858 5% S JR\ B 2 BRER A T 3 o
EREEEENERZERR  UBEREKRERE
BEIEE T b ©

HRAREZZOREANEENETHEAA
B (BRAZEFRRZBERER) X5 @wH
EEXBHBEZIZRBRAEERRMERFAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

154

(a)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group have established policies and systems for the
monitoring and control of credit risk.

The Group has developed and adopted a systematic
approach in running its business in an efficient way,
including the adoption of internal control procedures
for risk management purposes.

The Group manages its credit risk on a conservative
basis by evaluating its loan portfolio in relation of
quantitative risk/return criteria.

In relation to the pawn loan business, the Group
has adopted internal control procedures including
the identification and evaluation of ownership and
obtaining an accurate valuation of personal property.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value
ratio ranging from 50% - 85%, depending on the
type of collateral and the valuation is made at the
point of granting the loan. The maximum exposure of
the credit risk arising from pawn loan business at the
end of each reporting period is the carrying amount of
the pawn loan receivables as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

Different valuations are used for different types of
collaterals.

- Gold prices quoted from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

- Diamond prices quoted from latest Rapaport
Diamond Report

- Watches quoted from either retail listed prices or
parallel import wholesale prices

- Consumer electronic products quoted from
updated pricelists of second-hand consumer
electronic products

A customer is considered to have defaulted in
repayment of the pawn loan if they have not redeemed
the collateral or renewed the pawn loan by the end
of the term of the pawn loan. At the Group's sole
discretion, a grace period of up to six weeks may be
provided to customers after the end of the loan period
during which the Group may allow the customers to
renew the pawn loan and/or redeem the collateral.
The Group will take possession of the collateral if
the customer has not redeemed the collateral or
renewed the pawn loan by the end of the loan period
or the grace period provided. Repossessed assets are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 3 and the carrying amount
of repossessed assets as at 29 February 2024 was
approximately HK$13,875,000 (2023: HK$10,226,000).
The Group will proceed to dispose the collateral within
a reasonable time after possession.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

156

(a)

Credit risk management (CONT'D)

In relation to the mortgage loan business, the Group
has also adopted internal control procedures for the
identification and evaluation of the legal ownership
and accurate valuation of property. As a matter of
risk management, the Group usually grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property, which
is generally lower than bank’s loan-to-value ratio for
mortgages which can be as high as 70%. In a few
cases if the customers request loans with the loan-
to-value ratio of over 70%, approval from the chief
executive officer is required. For the valuation of the
property, the Group will make reference to a third
party valuer and/or the internet valuation services
provided by banks in Hong Kong. The Group holds
collateral against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over properties located in Hong Kong. The
Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
mortgage loan receivables is significantly mitigated by
the property held as collateral, with reference to the
estimated market value of the property at the grant
date. The Group may take possession of assets held
as collateral through court proceeding or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers. It disposes the
property by auction once receiving the possession.

Management has overall responsibility for the Group's
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the
Group's loan portfolio. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of loan receivables
individually at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. For trade receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the ECL by using individual basis, estimated based on
historical credit loss experience, as well as the general
economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

For other non-traded related receivables, the Group has
assessed whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been
a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather
than 12-month ECL.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 4.8% (2023: 5.5%) and 19.0% (2023: 18.9%)
of the total loan receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Although most of the customers are from Hong Kong,
the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base is large and unrelated.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from loan
receivables are set out in note 16.

The Group has developed its processes for measuring
ECL including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation
of forward-looking information and the methodology
used to measure ECL. The Group has policies and
procedures in place to appropriately maintain the
models used to assess and measure ECL.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. i EMREER AFEE (&)
VALUE (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies MERERBEERERBE (&)

(CONT'D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D) (a) EEREEE (/&)
The Group's exposure to credit risk KEEE G ER R
The Group's current credit risk framework comprises REBE AN EERBTRIELRBEUT
the following categories: Ehill

Basis for recognised

Category Description ECL
BRAHEEBEN

il A B

Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not 12-month ECL

been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)

B4 EENRRS B VRERUREERRAAAREN BEEERE 12EAEREEEE
WeREE (BFEIER)

Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL — not
credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired credit impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)

i2=3 BYBRHERAREERRARENERCEERENCHEE (BF2 2HEHEERE —
FEER) BEERE
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more Lifetime ECL — credit

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash  impaired
flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)

EH) BRA-RASEFHHEREENDTAKRSREELETNY HRBEEEHE —
B ZeRMEERTEAEERE (BE3REER) EERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

o gH EEBBETEHSABRAREVBRBEAAEEVEKCIHENER  MiEHE
A &=

{AoYe) BEMECEERAERAT
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. BiiEBREER AFE (&

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEERERBE (&)
(CONT’'D)
(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D) (a) FEREBEERE (&)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the
Group’s financial assets as well as the Group's

TREEEIREEFNARECREE
MEEERURAEEREBENZAEER

maximum exposure to credit risk by credit rating Bz
grades.
Gross
Internal carrying Loss Net carrying
At 29 February 2024 Notes credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
RZBZME=A=+NA W ABEETR NEARZHENEERE REAE BiERE REFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B
Loan receivables 16 Default Lifetime ECL (credit impaired) 837,718 (14,031) 823,687
JEMRER &N PHRSBEEEHE (FEHE)
Trade and other receivables 18  Performing Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 7,676 - 7,676
B9 REMERTE B4 HEBEEER (BlLE)
Cash and cash equivalents 19 Performing 12-month ECL 170,600 - 170,600
RENRLFEY B4 RARBHEESE
1,015,994 (14,031) 1,001,963
Internal credit Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
At 28 February 2023 Notes rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
RIZ-=F"A-+t/N\B WME ABEETR 2AARZHRPEESA RE&E EREE REFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Loan receivables 16 Default Lifetime ECL (credit impaired) 811,775 - 811,775
ERER EH PHRAEEER (FERE)
Trade and other 18  Performing Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 4,145 - 4,145
receivables B 2 HRBEEER (§E)
85 R EWIE
Cash and cash equivalents 19  Performing 12-month ECL 162,447 - 162,447
e RBEEEY B4 REAEHEEER
978,367 - 978,367

—ZomEFR |09
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

160

(b)

Market risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rate.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to certain loan receivables, loans from the
immediate holding company, debt securities issued and
lease liabilities which carried at fixed rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate mortgage loan
receivables, bank loans and overdrafts, other loans and
cash at banks.

It is the Group’s policy to keep its certain of its
mortgage loan receivables, bank loans and overdrafts
and other loans at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of prime rate, HIBOR and HSBC prime
rate.

(i)  Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming that the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis points (2023: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

At 29 February 2024, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
(2023: 100 basis points) in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after
tax by approximately HK$4,674,000 (2023:
HK$4,755,000).

BENXEEERBERAF

26.

BEREERAFE (&

MEEREREEZERBE (&)

(b)

5 m e
AEBEEG T REERN RSB ELE 2 75
R

T iz
R ER B B AR B T K R F B 2B TR
B £

B EBERARZER DEITES
ERLAEREERZ A FENXELR -

ARER B IR B EY BN R EUIR IR E K
RITEREX - EMERLRITHREESE
Bz IRERENEE R o

AEBBR DGR ERFRZET
FEWIZIBE K - R1TE B A R E Al
EX BEEREREQIFENERR K
SEZRSRENERRIZEINKE
BRE - -FERTAXKENEERER
M2 F

() SREI
TXAHEGRED MR ERE M
RANEEPIE S 2 RRETE - 2D
BRERBERRAEEZERTA
REFABAREEMRE - 100EE
B(ZZEZ_=F:100{AE2) L7
K TEDIRAEZEEAEANEE
B EERESRE - KREEE A
KA IRz A BB B PTIERTE

R—_E-_NE-_A-_+hIB &
ETAIEREEE A TN FE 1008 E 2,
—E - =F:100EES)  EAT
EEMEBESRFTEZERLT &
B AL BT TR, 1N
#494,674,0008 L (ZFE =4
4,755,000/ 7T ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(c) Liquidity risk management

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with loan/borrowing
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions and immediate
holding company to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long-term. The Directors are satisfied
that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when fall due in the foreseeable
future.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's financial liabilities and lease liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank overdrafts with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE—Z—N4E - A=+ A BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. I EREER AFE (&)
VALUE (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BREREEREERBER (&)
(CONT'D)
(c) Liquidity risk management (CONT’D) () HEBEDERERE (&
29 February 2024
ZE-MEZRAZTRA
Total
Within 1 More than 1  More than 2 contractual
year or on year but less years but less More than 5 undiscounted Carrying
demand than 2 years than 5 years years cash flow amount
MERD 140 260 L BRRER
REX R0 VE:3 BHH5E SENE REREAE REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Accruals and other payables JE:FER &
H it e R 3,865 - - - 3,865 3,865
Bank loans and overdrafts ~ ${TE K
(Note) #x (W) 11,228 - - - 11,228 10,000
Loans from the immediate  HEZRRAGZ
holding company Bx% 49,875 - - - 49,875 47,500
Debt securities issued BETERES 28,873 - - - 28,873 25,991
93,841 - - - 93,841 87,356
Lease liabilities HERRE 8,981 4,643 3,039 - 16,663 13,985

162 BENXEEERBERAF
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A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(c) Liquidity risk management (CONT'D)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )
MRRERREERAFE (&)
MERBEERERBE (&)

(c) REBELEBEE (&)

28 February 2023

i Sl bl A=
Total
More than 1 More than 2 contractual
Within 1 year  year but less  years but less ~ More than 5 undiscounted Carrying
orondemand  than 2 years  than 5 years years cash flow amount
INEILE 15 25N E BRORHER
BEX BLR2E BLRSE SEAE HReRELE EhE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Tr T
Accruals and other payables &zt &
H iR 4,459 - - - 4,459 4,459
Bank loans and overdrafts ~ R{TEZ K
(Note) #x (M) 11,295 - - - 11,295 10,060
Loans from the immediate  HEZRAGZ
holding company B0 49,875 - - - 49,875 47,500
Debt securities issued BETERES 23,328 32,085 - - 55,413 37,966
88,957 32,085 - - 121,042 99,985
Lease liabilities HEAE 8,492 4,725 3,255 360 16,832 15,540

Note: Bank overdrafts with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “within one year or on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. At 28
February 2023, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amount of the bank overdrafts amounted to HK$60,000
(2024: nil). Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that the bank overdrafts will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$61,000 (2024:
nil).

T« IR EREEGERZRITBEZHA Ll 55
AP FEARIRER | BRA - RN T ==
FZAZHNR ROBIZRURASLE
£60,000/870 (T -F : T) - ZEIIAE
EzHEHRR  EERBIVIT PRI RETHER
BIEEERAER - EF M - RITEER
BEFGEMESETERAPEE B A
& A SRS MLRTERA61,0008T (=2
ZHEEF) o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

164

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(d)

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable in accordance with the Group's accounting

policy.

26.

BEREER N VE (&
MBERERHEREE (#)

(d) £BIARXFHE:E
TREHRREREMRERATENEZS
BTAZON BRAVFERBARES
BRATEREZIBEERSFIE3MN -

29 February 2024
“RCmMEZAZt+ARA

Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
AFE AV ETEPEAUTER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FE18R FE28R 38K
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Recurring fair value R N
measurement =
Financial assets: TREE:
— Loan receivables at FVPL — & AFEFTA
B2 B
g% 150,242 - - 150,242
28 February 2023
—E_=F"A-+N\H
Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
NEE AEEFENEAUTER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F1R F2R 3R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T Tt Tt
Recurring fair value KLEENFE
measurement T2
Financial assets: PREE:
— Loan receivables at FVPL —3Z A F{EFA
1B 2 B
&% 141,455 - - 141,455

There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 in

both years.

BENXEEERBERAF
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB

For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(d)

Fair value Measurement of Financial Instruments
(CONT’'D)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of loan receivables at FVPL is determined
using discounting the contractual future cash flow. The

fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount rate.

The movement during the year in the balance of Level
3 fair value measurements is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 TR )
MRRERREERAFE (&)
MERBEERERBE (&)

(d) £@TERFEE (&)

EIMA T ENER
BATE A B2 BRER 2 ATFET
BRHRA OA KRS RENEE  AF
AR RERE 2R

FIRAFEANELEHRFEANCEEF M
T

2024 2023
—EmE —E-=F
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 March R=A—H 141,455 117,674
Loans granted BENER 570,664 515,268
Loans matured ERHEER (561,893) (491,474)
Net gains (losses) recognised in Réra B R EMEEmBRA
consolidated statement of profit or loss FIER 2 W (EE)
and other comprehensive income pEtcE 16 (13)
At 29 February/28 February R=—ZA=t+hRB/~
—A=+NH 150,242 141,455
Total net gains (losses) for the year REZE-_A=+NB/~
included in consolidated statement of ZAZH+NBLFE
profit or loss and other comprehensive T ARRE B K EAD
income for the year ended 29 2ERARZFAF
February/28 February Wz (B18) @858 16 (13)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
as at the end of the reporting periods are not
materially different from their fair values.

EERA RREPRNESMBHRET
REERAI R EREERERAGBL
REEEEATFEIBEEAER -
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7THI7R )

27.

28.

166

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. REHERE
The Group as lessor AEEERBEHAA
The group sub-leases out a number of properties under REERBEEHEDHLZ[EYHE - HE2 T
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period FEHRE A — S AT MHESRE NSRS
of one to five years, lease payments are usually increased at R LA URBTSEES - HEHESEE
the end of the lease term to reflect market rentals. None of MREKIE -
the leases includes variable lease payments.
As at 29 February 2024 and 28 February 2023, undiscounted N-ZE-_WE-_A-_+hAhBEE-_ZE_=F—"A4
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in —+N\B - ANEEE R AKRMEEW R HRhE B H
place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group EAZ A RHCERER N ARMBEHERE
in future periods as follows: FIENE
2024 2023
—EmE —E-=F
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Within one year —&FR 2,013 597
After one year but within two years —FIREMFA 404 558
After two year but within three years MERB=FA - 288
2,417 1,443
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 EAXBEAIXRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed Rt FGREUBREEMEEHAEE RS K
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the HEERIN AEBERIVATERBEARS
Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:
(a) Key management personnel remuneration () =EEEAEHMH
2024 2023
—B-F —EC=F
$'000 $'000
T +t
Salary and other benefits Fre kR EMmEF 7,606 7,397
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 4,305 3,583
Contributions to MPF RIER 90 90
12,001 11,070
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RARIZEEREEEEA B 250 B &
key executives is determined by the remuneration ZEG2EMARREMZBEERE -
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
BERECEEERERAA
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28 EAXBEAFRXE
TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b)

Transactions with other related parties

During the year, the Group entered into transactions

(b) EHMBAESZXS

FR AEEREBEXRBBIZTEEE

with related parties in the ordinary course of its AR 2RS0T
business as follows:
2024 2023
—EC_E —E-=F
$'000 $'000
o T
Rental payments paid to MIATE A FZ2BEAR
— Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited —ZXR&BEHRAR]
(“Kwan Chart Holding") (BREH]) 960 960
— Mr. Chan Chart Man —PRE kA 1,080 1,080
— Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited —HERBEXARAT
("Kwan Chart Estate”) ([BRBEZ) 633 660
Management fee incurred to RUATERTEEANERE
— Kwan Chart Holding —Z2X&H 40 40
Rental deposits placed with BATEAFAZHEES
— Kwan Chart Holding —ZX&H 160 160
— Mr. Chan Chart Man —PRE kA 180 180
— Kwan Chart Estate —HREX 110 110
— Full Honour Corporation Limited —Z2BERAA
("Full Honour") (r£mxsJ) 140 —
Management fee deposit placed with BATEATFAZERE
b
— Kwan Chart Estate —HREE 23 23
Z_NE_AZ+tHAhBE=ZZE

During the years ended 29 February 2024 and 28 REZE =
TEFEZAZTNRLEFEE AEEHEER

February 2023, the Group entered into short term lease
agreements with Kwan Chart Holding, Mr. Chan Chart
Man and Kwan Chart Estate, for leasing of premises.
During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
entered into short term lease agreement with Full
Honour, for leasing of a premise. The Directors consider
that all the above related party transactions during the
year were conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group's business.

Note: The Group entered into agreement in respect of the
rental of properties from Kwan Chart Holding, Kwan
Chart Estate and Full Honour, companies with common
beneficial owners with the Company and Mr. Chan
Chart Man, a director of the Company.

FEE REXEARBEREREEY
UGN EEHH - RRE =
FZB=+ABILERE AEEREAR
ME—ENETTERREGE  EFR
B EERGABER RS E— B
TR EE B R —RERBRTE
7

=
=11
P

i ARBERMEREE BHREENES
(EARARBABHERERERAZAR)
ARARBEERREEEBEWERRT
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“ZomEFR |0/
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

29.

30.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
(a)

New lease arrangements

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
entered into new arrangements in respect of leased
properties. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$7,211,000 (2023: approximately
HK$3,295,000) were recognised at the commencement
of the leases.

COVID-19-related rent concession

(b)
During the year ended 28 February 2023, the Group
received approximately HK$775,000 (2024: nil)
rent concessions in the form of a discount on fixed
payments during the period of severe social distancing
and travel restriction measures introduced to contain
the spread of COVID-19.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to the MPF
Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by employees.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future year.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$580,000 (2023: HK$565,000) represents contributions
payable to this scheme by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

BENXEEERBERAF

29.

30.

ITERHFERERS
(a) #HAEZH

BE-_Z-_WE-_A=-t+HBILEE K
EEpHEEYEI LT T FHAREE
EHEBEL7,211,0008 7w (ZE=-=
F : #93,295,000/% 7T ) E A EF AR TE

=7
o °©

(b) 2019ERFEEHEBEESER
REBEE—ZE_=F_A=-1+N\BILFE"
R E 1T B 4L 22 BB B K 17 PR il 7 e A
BH2019B R RS REFERRE  ~&EE
EENZITENEARDEEEEN A
775,000 L (ZEZW{FE:F) o
BRIKERIGTE

AEERBEEMBCERRBEERIBRESS
2 FEMEEBYURARENEE  UHXE
ANEEZESHAE - AKEZBEHTIEERZ
5% (LA®A1,5008 TR LR) ARES S
K EEB TR - AEE R E S5 S
E*ﬁ‘ﬂ’]g&ﬁ*ﬂﬁ%ﬁiﬂf’ﬁuﬂﬁﬁmﬁi\ s MARIREF
JZ - BEE R AURE A R 2R MK

RiFE BN m%@uﬁz/\ﬂu%zz@ﬁmm
580,000 /1171:(* =4F : 565,000/ 7T ) 54N

SENAE quHﬂF'EJJEf‘J‘EMJrilJZ{ E3K o
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the
Group has the obligation to pay LSP to employees in Hong
Kong under certain circumstances, subject to a minimum
of 5 years employment period, based on this formula: Last
monthly wages (before termination of employment) X
2/3 X Years of service. Last monthly wages are capped at
HK$22,500 while the amount of long service payment shall
not exceed HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as
a post-employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund contributions, plus/
minus any positive/negative returns thereof (collectively,
the "Eligible Offset Amount”), for the purpose of
offsetting LSP payable to an employee (the “Offsetting
Arrangement”).

The Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) was gazetted on 17
June 2022, which will eventually abolish the Offsetting
Arrangement. The Amendment Ordinance will come into
effect prospectively from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Eligible
Offset Amount after the Transition Date can only be applied
to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but no longer
eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation.
Furthermore, the LSP obligations before the Transition Date
will be grandfathered and calculated based on the last
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition Date.

The abolishment of this Offsetting Arrangement has no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

REEE (BREED) F578 AEBEEK
RBERATRERARE (RVERBASEF)
XNRERE FEAAL &R -BEATE (K
IHEMEAT) x 2/3 X RIBEFR - &KI1& A FH A
22,5008 TR LR MEARBESB|UTE
#818390,000/8 7T ° L& 5 ARSI ERER L Bl
EAIETE -

AN —NARFERBN CRFIEATRE B
By ARFAEEERANEENSHIEATES M
ok BEERIE &R (5E [ a'%
BHEHE]) UEEENTRERENERS ([#E
SR -

(0224 RIB M R INFTEVER (EIHZHE) (&
GBI (MEFTHREI ) ER-"F——F<A
TEARBHRTE SEBEGREHEZHE €
BB ER S —AG&RA—B ([BEAR
1) AR RIRERT RG] B B BROAER
HHSHEAEARNEHAR AN RREE
B MAEAEREHBEARENRRES R
o tbsh ERERRHZ AN RREEZHHZE
B YRBZEERBSERRZANRE —EAT
BitE-o

BERR R BE SR A M IS MR L BEATE -

ZECNFEFR
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 HE=ZE=—NF - A=+ N HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31. AT Z MR RE
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THE COMPANY

Notes 2024 2023
F5E “ENF —E—=
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 &KE 57,064 57,064
Other receivables H th fE W SRIE - 1,826
57,064 58,890
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries RN 7S] a 174,314 173,548
Other receivables H th fE W FRIE 2,961 2,539
Loans to a subsidiary m—EHBARREZER b 321,240 321,240
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 21,721 12,152
520,236 509,479
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEET & R K B fth BN 5RIE 500 725
Bank loans RITE 10,000 10,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHI B A Bl 2 ZIA a 228,325 180,925
Debt securities issued BETERES 24 25,991 11,993
Tax payable FERTTRIE 794 471
265,610 204,114
Net current assets RBEEFHR 254,626 305,365
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABER 311,690 364,255
Non-current liability FERBEE
Debt securities issued BRITEEES 24 - 25,973
NET ASSETS EEFRSE 311,690 338,282
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EiE 25
Capital (&N 19,272 19,272
Reserves (G 292,418 319,010
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 311,690 338,282
Notes: B
(@)  Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free (@) EW/EAMBATzZREAEER 28K
and repayable on demand. RENRER -
(b)  Loans to a subsidiary are revolving, unsecured, interest-bearing (b) M—FEMBARREZERAER EEM &
at 6% (2023: 6%) per annum and repayable on demand. FHRERE% (ZT_=F:6% )T ERIZERE

BENXEEERBERAF
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For the year ended 29 February 2024 BE=—T=NF =A==+ ALFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA TTFI7R )

Chp N A=
RBEBK  RRARTIINBAR (FEA

32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
At the end of reporting periods, the Company has direct or

32.

indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are A AN AAR)EEEESEEER 50
private companies, particulars of which are set out below: T
Principal country of operation EEMETERR

Place and date Attributable equity

of incorporation/ Principal country Issued and fully paid up interest and voting rights

Name of company establishment  of operation cagﬁitgllrgisgered capital held tgthe Group Principal activities
MY/ EEfE BRIRARES/ AREERNEY N
Ak HIBSERAY TEEX EMER RAgaRRrEE ITEH
2024 2023
ZRo@RE CTO=F
Directly held subsidiary:
ERREKELT: , , |
0i Wah Holding Limited BVI Hong Kong 2,000 ordinary shares with no 100% 100% Investment holding
31 May 2012 par value )
0i Wah Holding Limited LBRARE BA 2,000REEE L EBR RERR
3 ZFRR=1-H
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
BESENEAR:
Qi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
22 March 2000
BEMEEERRAA %t BB 10,000,000%% &k HERHE
I
Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
) 12 April 2012 }
BEREERARAT I B 1BERR B RifE
Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong‘ Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
) 12 April 2012 )
BEREEEARAA T 1RE R HE Rk
“T-—EMATCA
Qi Wah Property Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
o 20 February 2014 ) .
BENEEEERLA & Bk 1RERR HE
“E-ME-A=FA
0i Wah Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Consultant
4 April 2014
BELRERAA T 1RERR AR
“E-MEMANA
0i Wah Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
. 29 January 2015 } }
BEEHARAA BE & 1RE R HE
“E-RE-A-TAR
0i Wah Mortgage Limited 1H:ng‘ gg?g Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
. priczdtoe . A
BERBERAA e Bk 1RERR HE
“T-R¥MA-H
0i Wah Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
15 February 2016
BEERERAA & Bk 1REBR HERHE
“E-"EZATER
Po Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (Note 33) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
17 June 2022
BEMXEEARAA (Wi33) _ EE BB 1RE R HE Rk
“ECZFARTER
Qi Wah Investment Limited BV Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
13 June 2023
REERES B4 100RERER KBER
“EC=ERATER

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during both years and at the end of both years.

RMEFERARNBEFER HEMBIRE

BITEAERES
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EFI7R )

33.

34.

172

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS 33. WBEE
On 23 September 2022, the Group acquired the leasehold RZEBEZZFNAZF+=H A&EEUREK
improvement and loan receivables of cash consideration fB#99,495,0008 T WIBEHEME LB REKE
of approximately HK$9,495,000. This acquisition had Ao EmNATBEEEN RSB ATFEHERE
been accounted for as an acquisition of assets, given that —HFELMA R BE L W WEEEREE
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired WHEAR -REERFABEEN - WEEER
are concentrated in a group of similar identifiable assets. The WHE B BEUA TR -
consideration was fully settled during the year. The assets
acquired assumed at the date of acquisition comprised the
following:

$°000

T

Leasehold improvement HEMEEE 911
Loan receivables FEWE K 8,584
Total assets BmEE 9,495
Cash outflow on acquisition of assets WBEENRER

$'000

T

Cash consideration paid ENREeRE 9,495
EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 34. HEMBEE

On 12 March 2024, the Group entered into the subscription
agreement to subscribe for limited partnership interests in
PACM OW Global Special Situation Fund Il L.P., a Cayman
Islands exempted limited partnership at the subscription
amount of HK$112 million. The General Manager of PACM
OW Global Special Situation Fund Il L.P. fund is PACM OW
GP Il Limited, which is an associate of the Group.

BENXEEERBERAF

MN-BE-NE=A+-0 A&EEFTLREW
% REMSHEREEREBARIPACM OW
Global Special Situation Fund Il LPEYERE
B REL%A112,000,000/8 7T ° PACM
OW Global Special Situation Fund Il L.P.EYE S
B ABPACM OW GP Il Limited * AAEEK
—MEE AR -
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